
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 

You are summoned to attend a meeting of  

the Council 

on Wednesday, 9 October 2019, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

Please note that there will be a Member Briefing Session on Equality and Diversity 
commencing at 5.30 p.m. in the Bindloss Room, Kendal Town Hall.  For those who wish to 
attend, Prayers will be said in the District Council Chamber at 6.20 p.m. 

 

Membership 
Councillors 

 
Caroline Airey 
James Airey 
Giles Archibald 
Robin Ashcroft 
Rupert Audland 
Pat Bell 
Ben Berry 
Roger Bingham 
Jonathan Brook 
Helen Chaffey 
Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 
Brian Cooper 
Michael Cornah 
Tracy Coward 
Philip Dixon 
Judy Filmore 
Alvin Finch 

 

Gill Gardner 
Anne Hall 
Tom Harvey 
Eamonn Hennessy 
Hazel Hodgson 
Chris Hogg 
Rachael Hogg 
John Holmes 
Kevin Holmes 
Vicky Hughes 
Anne Hutton 
Helen Irving 
Andrew Jarvis 
Janette Jenkinson 
Dyan Jones 
Dave Khan 
Helen Ladhams 
 

Malcolm Lamb 
Kevin Lancaster 
Susanne Long 
Pete McSweeney (Vice-Chairman) 
Ian Mitchell 
Eric Morrell 
Jon Owen 
Suzie Pye 
Doug Rathbone 
Brian Rendell 
Matt Severn 
Peter Thornton 
David Webster 
Ian Wharton 
Janet Willis 
Mark Wilson 
Shirley-Anne Wilson 
 

 
Monday, 30 September 2019 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 

 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Inge Booth 

 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


Roll Call : Apologies 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  MINUTES  5 - 24 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Council held on 23 July 2019 (copy attached). 

 

2  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be obtained by 
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 

members of the public. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   

 To receive announcements by the Chairman.  

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


6  CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING QUARTER 1, 2019/20  25 - 48 

 To consider the projected year end position based on performance to the end of 
Quarter 1 2019/20 and officers’ planned actions to ensure a balanced budget by 
the end of the financial year. 

 

7  MEMBER SUPPORT STEERING GROUP - ANNUAL UPDATE  49 - 88 

 To consider the 2018/19 Annual Update from the Member Support Steering 
Group. 

 

8  REVIEW OF ANTI-FRAUD POLICIES  89 - 108 

 To consider updates to the Council’s anti-fraud policies to reflect changes in the 
organisational structure. 

 

9  LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CABINET QUESTION TIME (30 
MINUTES)  

 

 To receive announcements from the Leader and, in accordance with 
Paragraphs 10.2 and 10.3 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, to deal with any 
questions to the Leader and/or Portfolio Holders on any topic which is within the 
jurisdiction or influence of the Council and is relevant to their Portfolio.  Any 
Member who poses a question will be entitled to ask one supplementary 
question on the same topic. 

 

Members are encouraged to give 24 hours’ written notice of questions to the 
Solicitor to the Council of questions to be raised under the Agenda Item.  If no 
notice is received, then the Portfolio Holder can reserve the right to give a 
written answer.  Where written notice of questions has been given, these will be 
taken first.  Should a Member wish to ask more than one question, questions 
should be listed in order of priority.  If more than one Member sends in a 
question, these will be taken in alphabetical order of Members’ names, 
alternated from meeting to meeting.  Each question and each response is 
restricted to three minutes. 

 

10  MINUTES OF MEETINGS   

 To receive Chairmen’s comments (if any notified) in respect of the minutes of 
the Committee meetings held between 3 June and 6 September 2019. 

 

11  QUESTIONS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR CHAIRMAN OF ANY 
COMMITTEE OR SUB-COMMITTEE  

 

 To deal with any questions under Rule 10.6 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, 
of which due notice has been given and/or the Chairman allows as a matter of 
urgent business and which are in relation to any matter over which the Council 
has powers or duties or which affect the area. 

 

12  URGENT DECISIONS   

 In accordance with Paragraph 17.3 of the Access to Information Procedure 
Rules, to receive details of any urgent Executive Decisions, if any, taken since 
the last scheduled meeting of Council on 23 July 2019. 

 



13  NOTICE OF MOTION   

 The following Notice of Motion has been given in accordance with Paragraph 
11.1 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure:- 
 
“The council warmly welcomes the launch of the Government’s new Tourism 
Sector Deal, which will benefit almost 1,000 tourism-related businesses in South 
Lakeland and has been described by the British Tourist Authority as a game-
changer for tourism; 
 
Notes that as part of the ground-breaking Deal, the Government will also pilot up 
to five new Tourism Zones where additional support will be provided to help 
grow local visitor economies through initiatives like targeted help for product and 
promotion development, mentoring support to businesses and digital skills 
training; 
 
And confirms that the council will be play a full and active role in ensuring a 
successful bid is submitted for one of the five new Tourism Zones to encompass 
South Lakeland when the application process opens in December 2019.” 
 
(signed by Councillor James Airey) 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



15 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Council held in the District Council 
Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Tuesday, 23 July 2019, at 6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 
Pete McSweeney (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Giles Archibald 
Robin Ashcroft 
Rupert Audland 
Pat Bell 
Ben Berry 
Roger Bingham 
Jonathan Brook 
Helen Chaffey 
Brian Cooper 
Michael Cornah 
Tracy Coward 
Judy Filmore 
Gill Gardner 
Anne Hall 
 

Tom Harvey 
Eamonn Hennessy 
Hazel Hodgson 
John Holmes 
Kevin Holmes 
Vicky Hughes 
Helen Irving 
Andrew Jarvis 
Janette Jenkinson 
Dyan Jones 
Dave Khan 
Helen Ladhams 
Malcolm Lamb 
Kevin Lancaster 
 

Susanne Long 
Ian Mitchell 
Eric Morrell 
Jon Owen 
Suzie Pye 
Doug Rathbone 
Brian Rendell 
Matt Severn 
Peter Thornton 
David Webster 
Ian Wharton 
Mark Wilson 
Shirley-Anne Wilson 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Caroline Airey, James Airey, 
Philip Dixon, Alvin Finch, Chris Hogg, Rachael Hogg, Anne Hutton and Janet Willis. 
 

Officers 
 

Inge Booth Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Courage Aiguobasinmwin Trainee Solicitor 

Tom Benson Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

Julia Krier Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Simon McVey Operational Lead Support Services 

Paul Mountford Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist 

Claire Read Finance Specialist 

Fraser Robertson Communications Specialist 

Simon Rowley Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Helen Smith Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

David Sykes Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

 

C/22 MINUTES  
 
In response to a query relating to C/10 of the minutes of the meeting of the Council 
held on 21 May 2019, the Legal, Governance and Democracy Interim Lead Specialist 
explained that the June and July 2019 meetings of both the Joint Consultative Panel 

Page 5

Item No.1



16 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

and the Human Resources Committee had been cancelled due to a lack of detailed 
business and that an update on the Customer Connect Programme was scheduled to 
be presented to both the Joint Consultative Panel in August and the Human Resources 
Committee in September. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 21 May 2019. 
 

C/23 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Grange Town Councillor Joanna Greenway addressed Members on behalf of Grange 
Town Council with regard to Agenda Item No.9, Community Governance Review – 
Stage 4.  The Town Council was concerned with regard to the recommendation for a 
reduction in the wards of Grange-over-Sands from three to two and felt that the District 
Council should be mindful of community identity and the potential impact of the 
changes.  She referred to the Neighbourhood Plan and to the fact that Kents Bank 
would grow in size in the future.  The Town Council firmly believed that Kents Bank 
should be a ward in its own right.  Councillor Greenway drew particular attention to the 
response to the Town Council’s submission and to the fact that it had been stated that 
a three ward solution would result in the need for a new polling station.  She pointed 
out that the three current wards had used the same polling station for the past 
20 years, also suggesting that there would be a minimal increase in election costs 
should a new station be required.  Councillor Greenway urged the District Council to 
review the recommendations and to allow three wards in Grange-over-Sands. 
 
Mrs Valerie Kennedy addressed Council with regard to the same item on behalf of a 
group of residents of Kents Bank in Grange-over-Sands.  The group also believed that 
Kents Bank should not become a ward of Grange-over-Sands Council due to the fact 
that Kents Bank had a longer history of settlement than Grange-over-Sands, had 
increased significantly in size due to land allocations for Grange-over-Sands in South 
Lakeland District Council’s Local Plan and included almost half of the population of 
Grange-over-Sands.  Mrs Kennedy stressed that three wards would create a fairer 
representation from communities within the Grange-over-Sands area, with town 
councillors representing Kents Bank having a better understanding of the infrastructure 
and community needs of Kents Bank, which were different from the needs of those 
living in the main town area of Grange-over-Sands.  Mrs Kennedy closed, pointing out 
that Kents Bank was already fighting for survival as a distinct community due to the 
Local Plan having reduced the green gap between Allithwaite and Kents Bank.  She 
enquired if, by allowing Kents Bank to be treated as a suburb of Grange-over-Sands, 
this would mean that Allithwaite would suffer the same fate after the next Local Plan 
was published.  She asked the District Council to help ensure that Kents Bank was 
allowed to survive as a distinct community with its own representatives on Grange-
over-Sands Town Council. 
 

C/24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Interim Lead Specialist advised that the 
interests of all Members’ who were Town or Parish Councillors and who had an interest 
by virtue of the fact that Agenda Item No.9 (Community Governance Review – Stage 4) 
related to a Town or Parish on which they were a councillor would be recorded.  She 
reminded Members that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, they were 
required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other registrable interests 
which had not already been declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  Members 
could decide, in the interests of clarity and transparency, to declare any such 

Page 6



17 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

disclosable pecuniary interests already declared in the Register, as well as other 
registrable or other interests.  She thanked all Councillors who had been in contact 
directly regarding interests. 
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Interim Lead Specialist further reminded 
Members that, if they were predetermined or biased, or apparently biased, with regard 
to any of the items on the Agenda, then the onus was on them to declare as such, and 
to not take part in the item under discussion.  She explained that simply having 
participated in meetings at town or parish level and having expressed a view would not 
bar them from participating, provided that they could demonstrate that they had an 
“open mind”. 
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that the following councillors declared an interest in 
Minute No.C/27 below:- 
 

 Councillor Matt Severn; 

 Councillor Ian Mitchell; 

 Councillor Doug Rathbone; 

 Councillor Helen Chaffey; 

 Councillor Gill Gardner; 

 Councillor Hazel Hodgson; 

 Councillor Tracey Coward; and 

 Councillor Jonathan Brook. 
 

C/25 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda. 
 

C/26 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
A list of engagements which the Chairman or Vice-Chairman had attended since the 
last meeting had been circulated at the commencement of the meeting.  The Chairman 
thanked the Vice-Chairman for having participated in a number of events on his behalf. 
 

C/27 COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - STAGE 4  
 
Note – The following Councillors had declared non-pecuniary interests in this 
item of business by virtue of the fact that they were also members of town or 
parish councils regarding which recommendations had been made:- 
 

 Councillor Giles Archibald (Kendal Town Council) 

 Councillor Pat Bell (New Hutton Parish Council) 

 Councillor Jonathan Brook (Kendal Town Council) 

 Councillor Stephen Coleman (Kendal Town Council) 

 Councillor Gill Gardner (Lower Holker Parish Council) 

 Councillor Eamonn Hennessey (Kendal Town Council) 

 Councillor Hazel Hodgson (New Hutton Parish Council) 

 Councillor Helen Ladhams (Kendal Town Council) 

 Councillor Susanne Long (Kendal Town Council) 

 Councillor Ian Mitchell (Dent Parish Council) 

 Councillor Jon Owen (Kendal Town Council) 

 Councillor Matt Severn (Kendal Town Council) 
 

Page 7



18 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

They remained in the Council Chamber during the discussion and voting on the 
item. 
 
Councillor Helen Chaffey declared a non-pecuniary interest as a Member of 
Arnside Parish Council regarding which a recommendation had been made, 
however, by virtue of the fact that she felt that she was pre-determined on the 
matter, left the Council Chamber during the discussion and voting on the item. 
 
Councillor Doug Rathbone declared a disclosable pecuniary interest by virtue of 
the fact that he was in receipt of an allowance as Deputy Mayor of Kendal Town 
Council regarding which a recommendation had been made and left the Council 
Chamber during the discussion and voting on the item. 
 
The Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist presented a report on the 
final recommendations for the amendment of parish governance arrangements in 
South Lakeland arising from the responses received during the second consultation 
phase of the Community Governance Review and having regard to the South Lakeland 
Community Governance Review Terms of Reference as agreed by Council on 24 July 
2018 (Minute C/20 (2018/19) refers). 
 
At its meeting on 18 December 2019 (Minute C/59 (2018/19) refers), Council had 
approved a number of draft recommendations for the second consultation phase, 
details of which were provided within the report.  The second round of consultation had 
been based on the draft recommendations, and views had been welcomed from all 
stakeholders, whether for or against the proposals.  In line with the Terms of 
Reference, the Council had taken full account of views in regard to the draft 
recommendations, as well as potential changes or proposals other than those 
recommendations set out to Council on 18 December 2018.  The second consultation 
(Stage 3 of the Review) had ended on 26 May 2019, and the report set out the 
proposed changes at paragraphs 3.12 to 3.22, as well as details, recommendations 
and comments which were shown at Appendices 3 and 4 to the report. 
 
Once the final recommendations had been made, there were a number of steps that 
the Council had to take in order to implement the decisions. The decisions had to be 
published, together with reasons being provided for the making of the decisions.  The 
Council also had to take steps to inform persons interested in the review of the 
decisions and reasons.  Referral was required to the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England for some of the final recommendations, should the Council 
proceed with these.  The Order would then be made and the Council was required to 
deposit copies thereof to give effect to the decisions.  It was anticipated that the Order 
would be made during August 2019. 
 
Full details of the consultation carried out were included within the report and details of 
all of the consultation submissions, findings and recommendations were publicly 
available on the Council’s Website. 
 
Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, 
thanked officers for their hard work and diligence in the production of the report.  He 
explained that this was an officer report, with officers being responsible for providing 
their views and recommendations.  Councillor Archibald, therefore, moved the 
recommendations as set out at paragraphs 2.1 (1), (2) and (3), 2.2 (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), 
(6), (7), (8) and (10) and 2.3 of the report.  He further moved two additional 
recommendations, replacing recommendations 2.2 (9) and (11) shown in the report:- 
 

Page 8



19 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

 2.1 (4) that there be no change to the existing wards of Grange Town Council; 
and 

 

 2.1 (5) that there be no change to the existing numbers of councillors on 
Windermere Town Council. 

 
Councillor Archibald explained that the reason for moving an alternative 
recommendation for Grange Town Council was in response to the proposal from 
Grange Town Council that the Town Council be re-warded to three wards as described 
in paragraph 5.9 of the report.  As this proposal had arisen in response to the most 
recent consultation stage, it had not been subject to consultation with the community of 
Grange.  By leaving the current warding arrangements in place, there would be 
opportunity for Grange to petition South Lakeland District Council for the change and 
for the District Council to address the proposal outside of the current Community 
Governance Review.  The reasoning for moving that there be no change to the number 
of councillors on Windermere Town Council reflected the comments made by 
Windermere Town Council and described in paragraph 5.7 of the report and due to the 
fact that co-options had recently been made. 
 
Councillor Jonathan Brook, Deputy Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio 
Holder seconded Councillor Archibald, saying that healthy democracy was key to a 
vibrant community.  He added that the District Council would continue to visit and work 
with town and parish councils across the district. 
 
In response to a query, the Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Specialist 
informed Members that Windermere Town Council’s current membership was made up 
of 14 elected and 5 co-opted Members.  District Ward Members for both Grange and 
Windermere expressed support for the recommendations as proposed by Councillor 
Archibald. 
 
It was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) it be noted that, as a result of the second consultation (Stage 3 of the Review), 
the following draft proposals to parish governance arrangements, as set out to Full 
Council on 18 December 2018, are not recommended:- 
 

(a) altering of the parish boundary of Kendal Town Council to include an 
area of proposed development land north of High Sparrowmire; 

 
(b) altering of the parish boundary of Kendal Town Council to include 
properties on Natland Mill Beck Lane and The Beeches, and to include a small 
area of proposed development on land at Watercrook; 

 
(c) changing the names of the wards in Kirkby Ireleth Parish Council; 

 
(d) changes to the existing wards of Grange Town Council; and 
 
(e) changes to the existing number of councillors on Windermere Town 
Council; 

 

Page 9



20 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

(2) the following be approved:- 
 

(a) a reduction in the number of councillors on Arnside Parish Council from 
11 to eight; 

 
(b) abolishing the current wards of Dent and Cowgill and having Dent 
Parish Council as an un-warded parish; 

 
(c) the creation of a new Parish which amalgamates the parish of Fawcett 
Forest with the parish of Whitwell and Selside to create the Parish of Selside 
and Fawcett Forest; 

 
(d) a reduction in the number of councillors on Lower Allithwaite Parish 
Council from 15 to 11; 

 
(e) that Lower Allithwaite Parish Council consists of two wards - Allithwaite 
and Cartmel with Upper Holker comprising 6 and 5 parish councillors 
respectively; 

 
(f) that the parish elections for Lower Allithwaite Parish Council be re-
scheduled to coincide with the District Council elections, with the next Lower 
Allithwaite Parish Council elections to be held in 2022; 

 
(g) that the parish elections for Lower Holker Parish Council be re-
scheduled to coincide with the District Council elections, with the next Lower 
Holker Parish Council elections to be held in 2022; 

 
(h) altering the election cycle of Skelwith Parish Council to ensure that the 
elections are held on the same day as South Lakeland district elections for the 
ward of Ambleside and Grasmere, with the elections in 2020 to have a reduced 
term and the following elections to take place in 2023; and 

 
(i) aligning the Kendal Parish Boundary with the development plan 
boundary at Rochester Gardens and Burton Road, Oxenholme, causing a 
consequential alteration to the boundary of Kendal and Natland Parish and that 
the final recommendation be referred to the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England; and 

 
(3) the next steps outlined in paragraph 3.23 of the report be delegated to the 
Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources. 
 

C/28 REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN 2918/19  
 
Councillor Andrew Jarvis, Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder, presented the 
Revenue and Capital Outturn 2018/19 report which set out the Council’s financial 
performance for 2018/19 and the impact on reserves. 
 
The report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its 
meeting on 12 July 2019 and by Cabinet on 17 July 2019. 
 
Councillor Jarvis informed Members that following the meeting of Cabinet, an 
amendment to the financial figures had come to light.  Since the preparation of the 
accounts the Government had been denied leave to appeal two court cases on the 
treatment of public sector pensions.  Although the original court cases related to 

Page 10



21 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

judges’ pensions and fire fighter pensions, there was a similar, but much smaller, 
impact on local government pensions.  Along with all other Councils, South Lakeland 
had had to request revised pension figures and had had to amend the accounts to 
increase the pension charge to the General Fund by £608,000 for past pension service 
dating back to 2012.  There was an equal and opposite adjustment in the General 
Fund, as councils did not have to balance their pension costs in a single year.  The 
balance sheet now showed an increased pension liability of £608,000. 
 
Although the absolute outturn figures would change, there would be no net impact on 
the general fund balance, usable reserves or variances for 2018/19 or 2019/20. 
 
There was, however, a potential increase in pension contributions from April 2020.  
There was a pension revaluation currently being undertaken which would change the 
Council’s contribution rates from April 2020.  On the current assumptions, this could be 
in the region of £123,000.  This was a very rough figure, as there was a lot of work to 
be carried out now at the nation level to ensure the local government pension scheme 
was fully compliant with equalities legislation. 
 
In moving the recommendations contained within the report, Councillor Jarvis thanked 
the Finance Team for their work and, in particular, for highlighting the challenges in the 
budgets for the remainder of the year, thereby enabling the Management Team to take 
the necessary corrective actions and deliver without deficit.  Councillor Peter Thornton 
seconded the proposals, commending the Council’s financial contributions to, for 
example, car parks, caravan sites, Mintworks and investment in arts bringing income to 
the area.  He raised that this was due to a series of decisions made over the last ten to 
15 years.  He further referred to a number of non-statutory services carried out by the 
Council, welcoming this powerful report. 
 
During discussion, Members commended the report, highlighting the Council’s 
contribution to the community through sound management of finances, such as the 
enabling of play areas and affordable homes and the support offered through locality 
budgets. 
 
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder took the opportunity to 
inform Members about “Inside Out”, a new community centre in Kendal for young 
children which would not have happened without the Council’s moral, administrative 
and financial support.  He emphasised that this, as well as the Council’s financial 
contribution to many other projects, was due to the fact that the Council was a 
financially sound organisation. 
 
Councillor Jarvis and the Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) responded to 
queries raised.  Councillor Jarvis undertook to provide a full written response with 
regard to the overspend on Development Control salaries and receipt of lower income 
in 2018/19.  With regard to the change in pension contributions, he acknowledged that 
there would certainly be a cost to the Council in relation to this long-term obligation and 
suggested that this important topic would merit a fuller briefing to Council.  The Finance 
Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer), in relation to a question on outstanding debts, 
explained that all debt due to the Council was reviewed and that, where it was thought 
that debt may not be collected, provision was made for the potential write-off of 
relevant debt.  Account was taken of the type of debt, the age of the debt and whether 
any contribution had been made or if regular instalments were being made.  She 
undertook to provide a written response regarding how outstanding debts in relation to 
encroachments on Lake Windermere were viewed. 
 

Page 11



22 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

RESOLVED – That the following be approved:- 
 
(1) the contributions to and from reserves detailed in Appendix 1a to the report; and 
 
(2) the Capital Programme and funding set out in Appendices 3 and 4 to the report 
as part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. 
 

C/29 2018 - 2019 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT  
 
The Treasury Management Annual Report 2018/19 was presented by Councillor 
Andrew Jarvis, Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder.  The report reviewed the 
treasury activities and the actual prudential and treasury indicators for the 2018/19 
financial year, meeting the requirement of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities. 
 
The level of external debt had not changed during the year, with borrowing remaining 
well below the Capital Financing Requirement.  Current debt stood at £12.8m.  
Although at year end, the Council had cash and investments of £20.3m, further 
repayment of debt was not recommended given that current repayment premium would 
be circa 93%.  The Portfolio Holder highlighted the fact that the Council’s strong cash 
position was used to keep borrowing down and that it was currently £5.6m under-
borrowed.  He drew attention to the significant fluctuations in the Council’s cash flow 
which emphasised the need for dynamic management of the portfolio, ensuring that 
cash that was temporarily surplus to requirements was invested for the benefit of South 
Lakeland.  He also informed Members that the Council’s cash investments had out-
performed benchmark rates, generating £223,000 of income to support the core 
services of the Council. 
 
The report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its 
meeting on 12 July 2019 and by Cabinet on 17 July 2019. 
 
Councillor Jarvis moved the recommendation in the report, thanking officers for their 
work, and was seconded by Councillor Matt Severn who commended the Council’s 
safe lending pattern. 
 
In response to a query, Councillor Jarvis agreed for the need to maintain liquidity. 
 
RESOLVED – That the 2018/19 Treasury Management Report be approved. 
 

C/30 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2020/21 TO 2024/25  
 
The draft Medium Term Financial Plan, incorporating the Financial Strategy and the 
Budget Strategy (referred to collectively as the MTFP) was presented by the Finance 
and Resources Portfolio Holder, Councillor Andrew Jarvis. The Plan would ensure that 
the Council had a sound basis for allocating resources and effective financial 
management over the medium term. 
 
Councillor Jarvis informed Members that the numbers within the MTFP were identical 
to those approved by Council in February 2019.  The key reason behind this was due 
to the very high level of uncertainty over the Council’s funding, with the timing of 
Government decisions around Spending Review 2019 and the proposed new local 
government funding system.  Given this uncertainty, the Council continued to assume 
that the Local Government Financial Settlement based on “fairer funding” would be 

Page 12



23 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

implemented.  As part of this, the pooling arrangement for non-domestic rates would be 
expected to end, along with the New Homes Bonus.  The continuation of the Business 
Rate Pool was, however, a possibility if changes to local government funding were 
delayed.  Any previous applications had required a rapid response from all authorities 
about whether to join or remain in a pool.  The decision to join a pool had been 
delegated in both 2017 and 2018 and it was, therefore, requested that the same 
delegations continue for the current year. 
 
Councillor Jarvis stressed the fact that, despite the high level of uncertainty, the 
Council was in a strong position compared to most local authorities, with adequate 
General Fund balances and reserves, robust financial management practices and an 
excellent track record in achieving efficiency savings.  He believed that the Council’s 
decision to pursue the Customer Connect Programme would make a substantial 
contribution to reducing the deficit over the next five years, however, that there was, in 
addition, still considerable work to be done, and key risks remained. 
 
Councillor Jarvis added that, over the next four months, he would be working with 
Cabinet and the senior leadership team of the Council to focus on identifying options 
for closing the deficit in the short term and to develop a programme of options for the 
different scenarios faced by the Council, at the same time the priority remaining both 
on delivering high quality services whilst ensuring that the Council also acted to protect 
its long-term financial health for the benefit of residents.  The overall position would be 
constantly reviewed and reported over the rest of 2019 and early 2020 as part of the 
budget process and update reports. 
 
The report had been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its 
meeting on 12 July 2019 and by Cabinet on 17 July 2019. 
 
Councillor Jarvis moved the recommendation contained within the report and was 
seconded by Councillor Jonathan Brook, Deputy Leader and Housing and Innovation 
Portfolio Holder who commended the positive and proactive approach of this ambitious 
report, the Council at the same time taking into consideration the vulnerable as well as 
the protection of the environment of South Lakeland. 
 
Whilst concern was expressed at the uncertainty with regard to Government funding, 
attention was drawn to the fact that the Council’s MTFP included support for numerous 
ambitious projects, as well as assuming no changes to the existing Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for the vulnerable. 
 
RESOLVED – That the draft Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2024/25, as at 
Appendix 1 to the report, be approved. 
 
Note – Council adjourned for a break at 8.20 p.m. and reconvened at 8.30 p.m. 
 

C/31 SOUTH CUMBRIA COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2019 - 20  
 
The Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio Holder, Councillor Suzie Pye, 
presented the new South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Plan 2019/20 
which recognised and sought to continue the effective collaboration in place between 
South Lakeland District Council, Barrow Borough Council, Cumbria Police and partner 
agencies, including Safer Cumbria.  The Plan had been approved at a meeting of 
South Cumbria CSP on 9 April 2019 and formed part of South Lakeland District 
Council’s Budget and Policy Framework.  It aimed to reduce crime and enable local 
communities to remain safe and reassured, without fear, or threat, of crime.  The CSP 

Page 13



24 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

had agreed five priorities – protecting vulnerable people; domestic abuse; substance 
abuse and drug supply; violent crime and anti-social behaviour, key deliverables for 
which had been agreed for completion throughout the year. 
 
Members were informed that a report on the CSP was presented to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee twice annually, the last occasion having been on 26 April 2019 
(O&S/77 (2018/19) refers).  The Plan had been recommended for adoption by Council 
by the Cabinet at its meeting on 5 June 2019 (CEX/11 (2019/20) refers). 
 
In presenting the report, Councillor Pye stressed the fact that the key message was 
that prevention played a vital role in tackling these issues, for example by improving 
education alcohol misuse and working with licensees to reduce the likelihood of 
alcohol-related crimes. 
 
Councillor Pye referred to crime statistics in South Lakeland and reported that, 
comparing April to June in the previous year with this year, all crime was up by 3%, 
violence against the person (mainly without injury) was up by 16% and sexual offences 
down by 7%.  The Police had stated that there were two significant contributory factors 
to rising reported crime. Firstly, the continued increase in confidence from members of 
the public in reporting crime and, secondly, statistics had been impacted by greater 
compliance by officers with crime recording practices, something which had been 
recognised nationally by the Office of National Statistics. 
 
Councillor Pye commended a recent project which had already made an impact on 
young people in South Lakeland.  This was a Theatre in Education project tailored 
specifically to South Cumbria which had been taken to nine secondary schools across 
South Lakeland and Barrow, focussing on the day to day pressures faced by 
secondary-aged children and how they might build up a resilience to that pressure.  
The performances had been supported by workshops which the schools had been able 
to further develop later in the classroom.  This year, the same group had been 
commissioned to write and perform another piece, this time tackling County Lines Drug 
Activity.  The performances and workshops had taken place in June and had been very 
well received.  Students had been engaged and enjoyed the performances, learning 
valuable lessons in a dynamic way.  Councillor Pye extended an invitation to Members 
to meet with her for further information. 
 
Councillor Pye moved the recommendation contained within the report and was 
seconded by Councillor Dyan Jones, Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio 
Holder, who commended, in particular, the work which had been carried out in schools. 
 
Members expressed support for the Plan and were keen to see a reduction in crime 
figures.  Reference was made to the excellent presentation which had been made at 
the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in April and thanks expressed to 
those involved for their work.  Whilst Cumbria was a wonderful place in which to live, 
the importance of acknowledging that crime existed within the area was stressed.  The 
need to protect those most vulnerable within the community, and in particular in relation 
to domestic abuse in small villages, was raised. 
 
Councillor Pye thanked Members for their support which was a testament to the work 
carried out.  In response to a query raised in relation to an increase in road incidents, 
she advised that she did not have updated statistics, however, undertook to make 
enquiries at the next meeting of the Partnership. 
 

Page 14



25 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

It was subsequently unanimously 
 
RESOLVED – That the South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Plan (2019/20) 
be adopted as part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework. 
 

C/32 LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CABINET QUESTION TIME, INCLUDING THE 
COMPOSITE REPORT OF THE CABINET (1 HOUR MAXIMUM)  
 
Copies of an Addendum to Appendix 1 to the Deputy Leader and Housing and 
Innovation Portfolio Holder’s Executive Report had been circulated prior to the 
commencement of the meeting. 
 
Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, 
introduced the Cabinet Members’ respective Look Forward 2019/20 Executive Reports. 
 
In presenting the reports, Councillor Archibald reminded Members of the need for them 
to work together for the benefits of South Lakeland’s Communities, also reiterating the 
fact that his door was always open. 
 
Councillor Archibald raised the issue of Climate Change and informed Members that 
Councillor Dyan Jones, Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio Holder, would be 
responding affirmatively to the support being requested by Kendal Town Council for a 
Citizens’ Jury.  The business case indicated a total cost of £20,000 and the District 
Council’s contribution would be £5,000.  Councillor Archibald encouraged other key 
service areas and local service areas to monitor the pilot to establish if it had relevance 
for their communities; the Council would continue to support local initiatives, such as it 
had done significantly in Ambleside. 
 
Councillor Archibald, due to the importance of security to economic prosperity, 
announced that he would be proposing to make available a fund from the pool reserves 
dedicated for economic purposes to part fund new CCTV cameras in conjunction with 
parish and town councils, and the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC).  The fund 
would initially be £12,000, but could be increased, depending on demand; more detail 
would be provided in due course.  Councillor Archibald believed that the PCC had 
written to parishes on the subject, however, asked councillors who were aware of a 
parish that may be interested to let him know; he was already aware of several such 
parishes. 
 
Members raised queries in relation to the Executive reports. 
 
Councillor David Webster referred to Councillor Archibald’s introduction and to his 
mention of financial contributions to both Kendal and Ambleside.  Councillor Webster 
informed Members that Ulverston Town Council had set up and had made £10,000 
available for such a committee to address environmental issues and drew attention to 
an event scheduled to be held at the Coronation Hall in September.  He suggested that 
a contribution of £5,000 from the District Council towards the Ulverston fund would be 
greatly appreciated.  Councillor Webster also advised that discussions between 
Ulverston and the PCC were ongoing in relation to CCTV in the Town and further 
suggested that if the District Council was providing funding in this regard, then 
Ulverston would make an application. 
 
Councillor Archibald welcomed the submission of a business case from Ulverston, also 
encouraging others to come forward.  The District Council was keen to partner with 
both Ulverston and other local service areas to tackle such issues. 

Page 15



26 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

 
Councillor Janette Jenkinson, who was a member of the Committee referred to by 
Councillor Webster, referred to a time when the County Council had attached stickers 
to refuse bins in order to promote the message, twenty’s plenty.  She suggested that 
practical messages regarding environmental issues could be dealt with in a similar 
manner, thus enabling residents to become involved.  She drew attention to the 
excellent environmental work being carried out in Ulverston as a result of the Town 
Council’s contribution.  Councillor Jenkinson wondered if the District Council would be 
willing to take up the idea of posting environmental messages on wheelie bins and, if 
not, advised that the Town Council would do this. 
 
Councillor Dyan Jones recalled having attended a meeting in Ulverston and advised 
Councillor Jenkinson that it was her intention to form an appropriate plan. 
 
In accordance with paragraphs 10.2 and 10.3 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, the 
following written questions had been submitted to the meeting:- 
 
From Councillor Tom Harvey to Councillor Dyan Jones, Climate Emergency and 
Localism Portfolio Holder – “As I am sure the portfolio holder is aware, new legislation 
affecting properties with a septic tank comes into force on the 1st January 2020. Some 
people are fully briefed, and others have no idea what it means so can the PF give a 
brief synopsis on their understanding of the legislation and outline what steps this 
Council will be taking to both inform and help residents and our businesses who may 
be affected by this?” 
 
Councillor Jones responded, referring her response to a similar question raised by 
Councillor Kevin Lancaster in the previous year and undertook to forward a synopsis 
from officers.  Councillor Jones explained that this was not a local authority matter, the 
Environment Agency being the regulator.  She suggested that if Councillor Harvey felt 
that it would be of benefit, then a link to the relevant guidance could be provided on the 
Council’s Website. 
 
From Councillor Eamonn Hennessey to Councillor Dyan Jones, Climate Emergency 
and Localism Portfolio Holder – “Climate change meetings are being held around the 
district. Could you comment as to how well these have been attended and your initial 
impressions of the suggestions and feedback emanating from the attendees?” 
 
Councillor Jones reported that the meetings had been well attended and well received.  
Response had been positive and comments about the work being carried out by the 
Green Team at South Lakeland District Council had been good.  There had been many 
suggestions ranging from challenging supermarkets about the amount of plastic they 
generated to how public transport in Cumbria needed to be improved.  Many ideas 
were focussed around planning regulations and building requirements and the 
frustration that more could currently not be done because of Government legislation.  
The important message from attendees was around the sense of a lack of urgency 
from Government.  Although politics was not discussed, it had been clear at every 
meeting that people were frustrated with Government and wanted them to move 
forward, certainly changing laws so that local authorities could do more.  Councillor 
Jones pointed out that South Lakeland was fortunate, with beautiful surroundings, 
access to green space and low unemployment.  This did not, however, make South 
Lakeland immune to the challenge of climate change and loss of biodiversity.  She was 
pleased to see local action community groups formed out of the meetings and 
encouraged Members to join a group within their own wards. 
 

Page 16



27 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

From Councillor Kevin Holmes to Councillor Jonathan Brook, Deputy Leader and 
Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder – “As portfolio holder you may be aware that 
Levens Parish council are in the latter stages of putting a plan together to build a new 
village hall along with 7 low cost houses to rent. All stake holders have signed up on 
the section 106 apart from SLDC. What steps will you take to move this scheme 
forward?” 
 
Councillor Brook responded, advising that he was well aware of this much-needed 
development in Levens, as well as a number of other Community Lead Housing 
Schemes across the District.  Each community scheme came with its own challenges, 
as the Council’s experience with the scheme in nearby Helsington typified.  In respect 
of the Levens scheme, Councillor Brook provided some background, explaining that 
the Council had signed a Section 106 Agreement with Levens Parish Council and the 
other parties in July 2016.  This, amongst other matters, had provided funding towards 
a new village hall and seven low cost houses.  The Council has agreed to support 
these proposals with a grant of some £350,000.  More recently, the Council had 
received a further Section 106 Agreement from the Lake District National Park’s Legal 
Team.  This reflected the changes in boundaries of the Lake District National Park and 
also, he believed, changes to interested parties in the Agreement.  The Council’s Legal 
Team had received an Agreement signed by all parties on 4 July 2019 and was 
carrying out due diligence on the Agreement to ensure that the original agreements 
and commitments were not unnecessarily placed at risk by the current proposals.  
Councillor Brook undertook to ask officers to keep both Members and himself updated 
on progress and, as a result of the question, the Legal, Governance and Democracy 
Lead Specialist would ensure that the matter was prioritised.  Councillor Brook took the 
opportunity to mention progress on another community housing scheme by Homes for 
Ulverston who were working towards converting the former Hartley’s/Robinson’s 
Brewery site for local occupancy and low cost housing for rent, creating 37 new homes. 
 
From Councillor Dave Khan to Councillor Robin Ashcroft, Economy, Culture and 
Leisure Portfolio Holder – “I understand that we have been awarded cultural compact 
status.  Can you tell us more about this DESIGNATION?” 
 
Councillor Ashcroft was pleased to inform Members that this was the case and 
provided an update.  Arts Council England had advised the Council, as lead authority 
on the Cultural Compact Proposal, that the submission for the Morecambe Bay – 
Lancaster and South Cumbria Economic Region (LSCER) to become a Cultural 
Compact made to the Government Department for Digital Culture, Media and Sport 
(DCMS) and Arts Council England had been successful and that all of the Compact’s 
proposals had been approved by the DCMS.  Moving forward, the Council, as part of 
the collective LSCER partnership with Barrow and Lancaster authorities would now be 
part of the national pilot of Cultural Compacts and part of a cohort of places around the 
UK that would develop this new model.  The LCSER was in a privileged position to be 
part of the national pilot and it was a tremendous opportunity for the LSCER to co-
create and co-deliver a holistic vision for culture – that Morecambe Bay would be the 
best rural cultural and creative capital of the UK.  Councillor Ashcroft reported that the 
formal acceptance process was now being followed which would produce an offer letter 
from Arts Council England.  He explained that the recommendation to establish 
Cultural Compacts had come from the UK Cultural Cities Enquiry which had reported 
on how cities could create new development opportunities through investing in arts and 
culture to create economic and social value for people from every background.  At the 
heart of these recommendations was the idea of a Cultural Compact – an effective 
place based partnership structure that enabled a place to take full advantage of its 
cultural resources and embed them within wider local and national networks to fully 
realise their potential to contribute to inclusive growth.  Arts Council England had said 

Page 17



28 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

that there were pleased with the quality of the proposals, and with how these places 
had taken this Cultural Cities Enquiry recommendation and had really thought about 
what this approach could contribute to their strategic plans.  Councillor Ashcroft 
informed Members that a Cultural Compact was a strategic cross sector partnership 
driven by a common ambition for culture and place within the broader strategic 
development of a locality.  What defined a Compact was ambition.  Government 
believed that, by adopting a Compact, places could harness culture’s contribution to 
growth and assist with the development of Local Industrial Strategies.  These 
partnerships sought to bring together local authorities, business, education, cultural 
and community leaders to co-design and deliver a vision for culture in a city.  DCMS 
were interested to see if the Cultural Compact idea could work with a rural model and 
the LCSER had been chosen to be the pilot for such.  Compacts were groups that 
provided the leadership and strategic capacity that enabled key stakeholders to work 
together to realise their vision for a place and allow more people to feel the social and 
economic impact of cultures in their lives.  DCMS wanted to collaborate with places in 
the pilot programme to learn how this approach benefitted localities, what challenges it 
presented and what learnings could be developed together to take into the future policy 
perspectives about the role of culture in place making.  Councillor Ashcroft informed 
Members that the work on Morecambe Bay “Becoming a Cultural Compact” was due to 
commence in September 2019, and would be completed by March 2020.  This was a 
very significant opportunity for South Lakeland, as well as Lancaster and Barrow, and 
Councillor Ashcroft paid tribute to the Council’s officers, both over the longer term in 
establishing South Lakeland’s excellent reputation with the Arts Council, and in 
securing the Cultural Compact. 
 
From Councillor Helen Ladhams to Councillor Suzie Pye, Health, Wellbeing and 
Financial Resilience Portfolio Holder – “Poverty continues to be concern. What 
benchmarks and figures are you paying most attention to?” 
 
Councillor Pye responded, having researched a few different sources to try and to 
provide an overview of poverty levels both nationally and in South Lakeland.  The 
Social Metrics Commission (SMC) had published a detailed report last autumn in which 
they had identified that an estimated 14.2 million people in the UK were living in 
poverty.  Of those, 8.4 million were working age adults, indicating that employment was 
not necessarily a guaranteed path out of poverty; 4.5 million were children; and 1.4 
million were of pension age.  Councillor Pye felt there was some good news, with less 
pensioners than in recent history living in poverty.  6.9 million people in poverty (nearly 
half) were living in a household with a disabled person, which, she felt, was worryingly 
disproportionate.  Councillor Pye informed Members that the SMC’s definition of 
poverty was for a family to have an income of 55%, or less, of that of the median 
family.  Unlike previous measures of poverty, this took into account a wider range of 
unavoidable costs associated with personal circumstances, such as disability, as well 
as access to savings.  It also included those living on the streets and those in 
overcrowded housing that were not identified in other measures of poverty.  The SMC 
broke up the national figures into regions – South Lakeland was in the North West 
region, which was only partly useful for examination of this area.  Councillor Pye 
advised Members that she had asked the SMC for data relating to South Lakeland but 
that they were unable to provide these details due to the methods they used to gather 
data.  However they had said that they had the potential to provide data down to local 
authority levels in the future.  For now, the SMC remained a useful new tool for looking 
at the state of poverty nationwide and in wider regions.  Regarding local levels of 
poverty, Councillor Pye reported that the End Child Poverty Website provided very 
recent statistics for the number of children currently living in poverty in South Lakeland, 
which, as of May this year, stood at 23% after housing costs – an increase of 1.1% on 
the previous year.  These figures could be broken down into ward level so that it was 

Page 18



29 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

possible to see that, after housing costs, the former Kendal Underley and Kendal 
Kirkland wards had the highest levels of child poverty in South Lakeland, at 34.6%.  
Councillor Pye explained that child poverty had long-lasting effects.  By GCSE age, 
there was a 28% gap between children receiving free school meals and their wealthier 
peers in terms of the number achieving at least 5 A*-C GCSE grades.  The Council 
was also keeping in touch with the local food banks in order to monitor the trends they 
were witnessing in terms of numbers of people relying on them to feed themselves and 
their families.  The King’s Food Bank in Kendal had recorded an 18% increase in 
usage year on year for the last two years.  They were in no doubt that the roll out of 
Universal Credit and the associated five week wait was a major contributing factor to 
their increased usage.  Ulverston Food Bank, which was part of the Barrow Food Bank, 
had provided Councillor Pye with their latest statistics which showed that, in Ulverston 
alone, there had been a 38% increase in usage over the past few months, compared 
with the same period in the previous year.  Councillor Pye stressed that it was worth 
remembering also that, with the school holidays now in full flow, there would be more 
families struggling to feed their children than usual, which presented an added strain to 
the already busy food banks.  The SMC had stated that, as well as the 14.2 million 
people living in poverty in the UK, a further 2.5 million people lived less than 10% 
above the poverty line.  This meant that a relatively small change – a rise in the cost of 
living, a change in income, or a cut in benefits - might be all it took to push these 
people into poverty.  Councillor Pye pointed out that many people were just one piece 
of bad luck, one unfortunate decision, or one unforeseen crisis away from potential 
poverty. 
 
From Councillor Matt Severn to Councillor Robin Ashcroft, Economy, Culture and 
Leisure Portfolio Holder – “Is there any progress to report on the Lancaster and South 
Cumbria Economic Region?” 
 
Councillor Ashcroft responded in the affirmative.  He first highlighted the objectives of 
the Strategy and the potential benefits to Lancaster, Barrow and, in particular, South 
Lakeland.  He emphasised how together, growth could be driven and skills in energy, 
advanced manufacturing, digital technologies, health innovation, life sciences, higher 
education and the visitor economy built on to grow a nationally and internationally 
significant economy.  Councillor Ashcroft reported on progress to date:- 
 

 30 May 2019 – South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) Cabinet Members and 
officers had met with Lancaster University to discuss ways in which each other’s 
knowledge and support could be used to progress the initiative and also how other 
issues such as Climate Change, Biodiversity and skills enhancement and retention 
could be collaborated on. 

 

 31 May 2019 – SLDC had met with the new Leader and Chief Executive Officer of 
Lancaster City Council to agree their support for the proposed launch event and 
also for the forthcoming cultural compact bid. 

 

 4 June 2019 – SLDC officers had met with the jointly-appointed consultants, 
Mickledore, to outline the potential offers and asks of Government based around 
individual and collective strengths; this work was ongoing. 

 

 5 June 2019 – The Leader and Chief Executive had met with Barrow’s new 
Leader/Executive and Chief Executive Officer and it had been agreed to take 
forward the initiative to take forward the launch event. 

 

Page 19



30 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

 6 June 2019 – A collective bid had been made to the Department for Digital 
Culture, Media and Sport for a cultural compact, supported by the Arts Council. 

 

 14 June 2019 - Lancaster and South Cumbria Economic Region (LSCER) Launch 
Event at Lancaster University.  More than 100 delegates had heard about the 
opportunity and potential of the area.  This had included many local businesses 
from South Lakeland, and feedback had been very positive.  The plan was now to 
engage further with local businesses for them to help shape a future deals or 
investment plan for SLDC and Barrow/Lancaster. 

 

 19 June 2019 – SLDC Leader/officers had met with Henri Murison, Director of the 
Northern Powerhouse Partnership.  He had been encouraging of the initiative and 
had offered his help in preparing for any future work with Government. 

 

 3 July 2019 – An informal meeting of three Leaders had been held at the Local 
Government Association Conference in Bournemouth to discuss progress and 
future plans. 

 

 8 July 2019 – SLDC/Barrow Chief Executive Officers had met with Cumbria County 
Council Chief Executive Officer/Director to discuss potential support for the 
initiative. 

 

 17 July 2019 – SLDC Deputy Leader and Chief Executive Officer, along with 
Barrow Deputy Leader and Chief Executive Officer, had met with three of the 
Morecambe Bay Members of Parliament in Westminster to outline potential future 
plans and how they could support the initiative. 

 

 18 July 2019 – Henri Murison, Director of the Northern Powerhouse Partnership, 
had met with Leaders and officers of the three Councils in Lancaster to discuss the 
potential way forward and progression to Government. 

 

 19 July 2019 – SLDC’s Operational Lead Specialist Services and the Deputy 
Leader of Barrow had made a presentation to Cumbria Local Enterprise 
Partnership to gather support for any future initiative. 

 
Councillor Ashcroft closed, saying that, notwithstanding the fact that both Lancaster 
and Barrow Councils, post the May elections, had seen new Members and officers 
setline into new roles, he was sure that Members would recognise the considerable 
progress that had been made to date.  The initiative had gained considerable support 
already, with much enthusiasm for moving it forward. 
 
From Councillor Tom Harvey to Councillor Dyan Jones, Climate Emergency and 
Localism Portfolio Holder – “Recent media coverage has highlighted how the collection 
and disposal of general waste and recyclable waste particularly plastic, is at the 
forefront of many people’s concerns. This coverage has demonstrated how in some 
cases, plastics which are collected and disposed of in apparently the correct way, 
actually end up without the knowledge of local authorities in landfill, often thousands of 
miles away. I appreciate SLDC has a clear general summary on the website of how 
and where our recyclable material goes, but my question is will the PF provide 
Councillors with a clear audit trail, such as the companies that deal with the waste and 
the final destination of our recycled plastic, showing the route of this waste so that we, 
as Councillors, can tell our residents that the sterling work they do on recycling their 
waste is indeed a worthwhile exercise?” 
 

Page 20



31 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

Councillor Jones advised that she was unable to provide Councillors with a clear audit 
trail as the information was of a sensitive nature.  She advised, however, that there was 
a clear audit path and a strict reporting structure that the Council complied with; this 
had been in place since 2003.  Councillor Jones explained that South Lakeland District 
Council (SLDC) was responsible for collection of waste; Cumbria County Council 
(CCC) was responsible for the disposal of residuals.  SLDC managed its recyclable 
waste and had a full audit trial of where this recyclable waste ended up.  SLDC 
received income and recycling credits for this product as it was re-used.  Nothing 
managed by SLDC left the UK.  Councillor Jones reported that waste was audited 
quarterly.  A significant audit had been recently completed by CCC, and SLDC had a 
duty to report every month to the County and the Environment Agency.  Called waste 
data flow, its purpose was to record every kilo of waste collected and where it had 
gone.  This was a nationwide database.  Councillor Jones suggested that there was a 
subtle inference in Councillor Harvey’s question that the communications message was 
inaccurate and that access to an audit trail would allay any concerns from the public.  
However, she reiterated that the information requested was of a confidential and 
sensitive nature.  Councillor Jones reported that, in the last three months, an officer 
from SLDC had audited Kendal Fell/Sinkfall, Ulverston/Cumbria Waste, Carlisle.  The 
process carried out by the three sites in the Midlands that SLDC used were audited by 
the Environment Agency.  CCC also followed an audit trail.  Councillor Jones said that, 
pending publication by the Government of the results of the Waste Strategy, there were 
questions to consider.  Would the current state of inertia continue or would it be pushed 
back or delayed?  Would Westminster recognise the different challenges faced by rural 
and urban authorities?  Would they recognise some of the impact that the new Strategy 
would have on the budgets and revenue and, ultimately, the risks and costs associated 
in providing a food waste collection service?  Councillor Jones took the opportunity to 
thank residents for the good work they did sorting at source, in other words, at 
kerbside.  This was why SLDC had a great record of recycling at consistently over 
40%, because of household participation.  In South Lakeland, recyclable material was 
of such high quality that it was keenly sought after.  This translated into value for 
residents and the figures spoke for themselves; SLDC alone had recycled 40m items in 
the previous.  Councillor Jones felt that Members would wish to join her in recognising 
the great job done by South Lakeland’s community in sorting their recyclable waste. 
 
Councillor Harvey, referring to the briefing for Members held prior to the meeting on 
Freedom of Information and Data Protection, put a supplementary question to 
Councillor Jones, asking her to revisit and confirm whether there was an obligation to 
provide the information requested. 
 
The Chairman of the Council advised that Councillor Jones would provide a written 
response. 
 
Note – In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Part 4, Rule 8 (Rules of 
Procedure), a motion to continue the meeting past 9.30 p.m., was carried. 
 

C/33 MINUTES OF MEETINGS  
 
No comments or questions had been received in respect of the minutes of committee 
meetings between 22 April and 31 May 2019. 
 

C/34 QUESTIONS TO CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL OR CHAIRMAN OF ANY 
COMMITTEE OR SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
No questions had been received. 

Page 21



32 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

 

C/35 URGENT DECISIONS  
 
No urgent Executive Decisions had been taken since the last meeting of Council on 
21 May 2019. 
 

C/36 NOTICE OF MOTION  
 
In accordance with Paragraph 11.1 of the Council’s Rules of Procedure, the following 
notice of motion had been put to Council by Councillor Giles Archibald, Leader and 
Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder:- 
 
 “This council notes in the recent report from the UN intergovernmental panel on 
biodiversity and ecosystem services. The report outlines the deterioration in 
biodiversity globally and the serious consequences of a further decline in biodiversity. 
 
This council further notes the UK government’s failure to achieve agreed targets on 
biodiversity (the Aichi targets). 
 
Council therefore 
 
1. Calls on the government to urgently take action to achieve the Aichi targets; 
 
2. Commits to a review of how this council’s activities can ensure biodiversity protection 
while at the same time delivering services, housing and climate change protection to 
the residents of the district; and  
 
3. Calls on our local authorities in the county to jointly address the highly serious issue 
of the future deterioration in biodiversity.” 
 
In moving the motion, Councillor Archibald stressed the importance and seriousness of 
the issue.  He referred to the recent report produced by a global panel of scientists, the 
conclusions of which were not encouraging.  Councillor Archibald explained that 
biodiversity covered many dimensions.  It was not purely about ecosystems but also 
covered the number of species that existed, the population and size of that species 
and, critically, the genetic variation within the species.  Genetic variety within a species 
was critical to ensure the resilience of that species.  Human resistance to certain 
diseases relied, in part, on genetic diversity. 
 
Councillor Archibald informed Members that the biodiversity of the world mattered 
because it provided a lot of services which tended to be taken for granted.  For 
example, most of the clean water in the world was provided through the ecosystem 
service and most of the fresh air resulted from natural carbon sinks.  Much of the 
climate was regulated through the ecosystem.  The ecosystem provided a huge 
amount of medicines, for example, 70% of medicines for cancer depended on nature.  
The ecosystem provided the livelihoods for billions and it furnished the pollination 
system, which as a vital natural process that was critically important to the food supply. 
 
Councillor Archibald explained that more ecosystem services were used up than were 
generated.  He referred to the “Earth overshoot day” which last year had been 
1 August.  This was the day the earth used ecosystem services that could be 
regenerated in a twelve month period.  For Britain, it had been17 May.  Human 
existence was threatened if this continued. 
 

Page 22



33 
23.07.2019 Council 
 

 

Councillor Archibald informed Members that the report to which he had earlier referred 
indicated that about 1m species were currently at risk.  There was genetic narrowing 
that was of concern and a reduction in genetic diversity could threaten human 
existence. 
 
There were considered to be several causes of biodiversity loss, of which climate 
change was one.  Others were land use change, pollution and invasive species, for 
example Himalayan Balsam. 
 
Councillor Archibald talked about what could be done, advising that the Government 
had made some commitments - the Aichi targets.  Sadly, some of these targets were 
not being reached, however, Councillor Archibald suggested that the Government 
could be pushed to re-examine its commitments.  He felt that this motion to Council 
would hopefully remind Government and the public of the importance of the issue. 
 
Councillor Archibald explained how help could be offered locally, by planting trees, by 
creating habitats (for example Sandy Bottoms in Kendal was to be converted into a 
much richer, more bio-diverse habitat). The Council could offer support for individual 
projects like pollinators, hedgerows and making sure the verges grew more wildflowers.  
The Council would continue diverse tree planting and increase the biodiversity in its 
parks.  It would continue to seek ideas from others and would ensure that developers 
respected existing Council policy which required biodiversity gain from developments.  
The Council did not, however, not have all the answers and Councillor Archibald closed 
in calling on all Members and all of the community to join in tackling this crisis. 
 
Councillor Tom Harvey, seconding the motion, supported all that said by Councillor 
Archibald.  He believed that all Members would be in agreement. 
 
Members welcomed this worthwhile motion which they felt should be addressed 
alongside Climate Change.  It was agreed that a great deal could be done at local level 
and suggested that Members should look to find areas within their wards which had the 
potential for re-wilding, taking into account the potential to link up small green spaces, 
as well as working in partnership with other authorities, schools and communities in 
order to make positive changes. 
 
It was subsequently unanimously 
 
RESOLVED – That the motion be carried as submitted. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 9.40 p.m. 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



South Lakeland District Council 

Cabinet 11 September 2019 

Council 9 October 2019 

Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 1, 2019/20 

 

Portfolio:   Andrew Jarvis - Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist and Section 151 Officer 

Report Author: Claire Read – Finance Specialist 

Wards:  (All Wards) 

Forward Plan: Not Applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 It is expected that Members note the projected year end position based on 
performance to the end of Quarter 1 2019/20 and officers planned actions to ensure 
a balanced budget by the end of the financial year. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet note the contents of the report; 
 

2.2 It is recommended that Council note the contents of the report.  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.0.1 As a result of the new leadership structure from April 2019 the finance team have split 
and re-allocated the budgets approved in February 2019 to the new Operational Leads 
and Lead Specialists.  In some cases it is expected that elements of existing budgets 
will be split between two or more lead officers in the future but for simplicity a single 
lead officer is responsible for the budget for now.  

Salary budgets have been split into the new structure, but the remainder of the 
departmental costs relating to Phase 1 of Customer Connect have not yet been split 
and all departmental costs relating to Phase 2 have remained unchanged. There will 
be further splitting and re-combining of budgets during the remainder of this financial 
year.   

3.0.2 Revenue – Appendix 1 sets out the revenue variances to date. The approved net 
revenue budget for 2019/20 set by Council in February 2019 was £14m which included 
a Customer Connect savings target of £740k and a vacancy factor savings target of 
£593k. Additionally, carry forward requests of £510k were approved by Cabinet on the 
24 April 2019. Expenditure budgets have been increased in accordance with those 
approved carry forwards along with the matching funding from reserves.  

Overall, at the end of quarter 1, budget monitoring has identified a forecast year-end 
overspend of £262k but, of course, it is still very early in the financial year. At the same 
time in 2018/19 we were predicting an overspend of £132k and went on to achieve a 
£9k underspend at outturn. 

Page 25

Item No.6



Trends identified in these budget monitoring results will be fed into the 2020/21 budget 
setting process. 

3.0.3 Capital – Appendix 2 sets out the position on the capital programme. The capital 
budget for 2019/20 approved by Council in February 2019 was £12.339m. Re-profiling 
of spend into 19/20 totalling £3.144m was reported to Cabinet 24 April 2019.  

Additional grant-funded expenditure of £873k has subsequently been requested giving 
a 2019/20 capital programme of £16.356m. The updated capital programme was 
approved by Council on 23 July 2019.  Expenditure against the programme to the end 
of quarter 1 was £1.027m.  

It is very early in the financial year with many projects still at the specification or tender 
stage but we continue to seek assurances on the timing of capital expenditure and 
progress will be monitored closely.  A revised capital programme will be submitted as 
part of the budget setting process. 

3.0.4 Treasury – Appendix 3 provides an update on Treasury management for the quarter. 
All activity in quarter 1 has been within the approved limits. Investments have 
performed better than the relevant benchmarks. No repayment of existing borrowing 
or new borrowing is anticipated up to the end of the financial year.  

3.1 Revenue Variances by Leadership Team 

3.1.1 Appendix 1 provides the detail of the 2019/20 quarter 1 (Q1) revenue variances for 
service area grouped by lead officer. The projected out-turn is for a net overspend of 
c£104k. Further detail is provided below in Table 1 and paragraphs a. to j. below. 

Table 1: Summary by Service Area 
 

Expenditure 
Budget Full 

Year 
£000 

Income 
Budget 

Full Year 
£000 

Expenditure 
Variance 
to Date 

£000 

Income 
Variance 
to Date 

£000 

Overall 
Variance 
to Date 

£000 

Out-turn 
projection 

£000 

Strategy 2,570 (12) (5) 2 (3) 0 

Performance, Innovation 
and Commissioning 

1,431 (9) (14) 8 (7) 6 

Support Services (a) 1,483 (240) (12) 2 (10) 35 

Finance (b) 18,745 (17,323) 48 (4) 44 (95) 

Human Resources (c) (63) (3) (21) 1 (20) (55) 

Legal , Governance and 
Democracy (d) 

1,849 (33) (19) 0 (19) (15) 

Digital (e) 0 0 (23) 0 (23) (31) 

Customer and Locality 
Services (f) 

5,465 (6,522) (28) 6 (22) 79 

Specialist Services (g) 8,058 (1,235) 32 35 67 89 

Case Management (h) 3,511 (905) (82) 14 (68) (70) 

Delivery and Commercial 
Services (i) 

9,220 (2,990) (7) 48 40 194 

Corporate Items (j) 13,018 (35,275) 0 0 0 (33) 

Total GF 65,287 (64,547) (131) 112 (19) 104 

 

Table 2 below shows the estimated general fund position at the end of 2019/20, taking 
into account the Customer Connect savings target of £740k and the progress to date in 
delivering those savings from Phase 1 of Customer Connect. Phase 2 of Customer 
Connect is still being costed with savings to be identified later in the financial year to 
meet the whole £740k target. 

Page 26



Table 2 General Fund Position 

 2019/20 
£000 

Net General Fund Before Corporate Savings Target 740 

Phase 1 Customer Connect Savings  (582) 

Outturn Projection 104 

Net projected General Fund Balance before Phase 2 262 

 

a Support Services – The current projection is for a £35k overspend due to customer 
connect transitional costs for redundant staff working their notice and pay protection. 

b. Finance – The current projection is for a £95k underspend at year-end. This relates to 
a £190k saving arising from the re-tendering of the insurance contract, offset by £54k in 
Customer Connect transition costs and £52 on interim cover identified as service critical. 

c Human Resources - The current projection is a £55k underspend, due to vacant posts 
partially offset by interim cover. 

d Legal, Governance and Democracy - There is currently a £15k underspend forecast 
due to unclaimed member’s allowances.  Any underspend at the end of the financial 
year as a result of unclaimed allowances will be transferred to the Personal Financial 
Resilience reserve, as approved by Council on 26 February 2019. 

e Digital – The current projection is a £31k underspend, due to vacant posts.  

f Customer and Locality Services – The current projection is for a £79k overspend. The 
main reasons for the projected overspend are  

 Car Parks overall overspend of £40k made up of ,a £67k demand led income shortfall 
on car park income, £14k overspend on rates bills offset by a £41k underspend on 
salaries due vacant posts and £48k in Customer Connect transition costs. 

 Lakes overall overspend of £31k made up of £11k demand led shortfall expected on 
jetty berths and a potential £20k shortfall on encroachment rent income. 

 Parks have a £41k underspend due to additional income related to a backdated 
recharge to Cumbria County Council for grounds maintenance to highways and grass 
verges. 

g Specialist Services – The current projection is for a £89k overspend. This is made up 
of a small number of variances across the service as detailed in Appendix 1. The main 
reasons for the projected overspend is: 

 An overspend of £50k on agency cover for development control until Phase 2 
recruitment is complete. Despite the staff turnover planning is still meeting its targets 
and the overspend is being partially offset by an expected £13k demand led surplus 
on planning income. 

 Customer Connect phase 1 transitional costs of £35k. 

 A £27k demand led income shortfall on building control fees for approvals and 
inspections. 

 A £18k demand led shortfall in land charges income 

 A £28k underspend on Housing Enabling due to vacant post part offset by agency 
costs.  

Page 27



h Case Management – there is currently a £70k underspend forecasted due to salary 
savings due to vacant posts in Community Services 

i Delivery and Commercial Services -  the current projection is for a £194k overspend. 
This is made up of a number of variances across the service and these are: 

 A salary overspend of £153k in Kerbside Recycling, due to use of agency staff to 
ensure service delivery and not meeting the 4% vacancy target (£99k).Use of 
agency staff is lower this year compared to 2018/19, following a restructure. 

 A projected shortfall £103k on sale of materials due to current market prices of 
materials  

 A £42k projected overspend on transport repairs and maintenance. 

 A £17K potential overspend on fuel. 

 A £40k potential underspend on salaries for building cleaners. 

 A £47k underspend on health and safety salaries due to a vacant post part offset 
by consultancy costs of c£28k. 

 A £60k projected underspend in tipping and disposal charges offset by a projected 
shortfall on £24k on kerbside recycling credits. 

j  Corporate – The current projection is for a £33k underspend as a result 2018/19 capital 
spend being lower than budgeted leading to a lower Minimum Revenue Provision charge 
in 2019/20. 

3.2 Analysis of employee budgets 

3.2.1 The position on employee costs at quarter 1 is summarised in Table 2 below. The full 
year budget has been reduced from £15.2m to £14.56m to reflect savings from Phase 
1 of Customer Connect. 
 

3.2.2 The total variance against the quarter 1 profiled budget is an overspend of £72k, 2% 
of the year to date budget. This includes the 4% vacancy saving built in to all direct 
employee cost budgets.  The use of the 4% vacancy saving against all salaries will be 
reviewed as part of the 2020/21 budget setting process to assess if it is reasonable to 
apply the saving to rota-based services where absences have to be covered by 
overtime or agency staff. 

Table 3: Employee costs 

Full year 
budget 

Profiled 
budget 

Actual to 
date 

Variance Variance 

£000 £000 £000 £000 % 

14,557 3,557 3,629 72 2% 

 

3.2.3 Included in table 2 above is expenditure on contract and agency staff. The total spend 
on this element of employee costs was £209k against a profiled budget of £4k. This 
expenditure on contract and agency staff equates to 5.77% of the total spend on 
employee costs in quarter 1. The majority of this relates to development control (£87k) 
and the Waste and Recycling service (£29k). It is expect that once Customer Connect 
Phase 1 is embedded and Phase 2 is implemented that the majority of these temporary 
roles will be replaced with employees. 

 

Page 28



3.3 Savings and 2020/21 budget setting cycle 

3.3.1 As part of the 2019/20 budget process, further Customer Connect savings of £740k 
were identified. We are currently showing a saving from phase 1 of the staff programme 
of £582k in salary savings. Phase 2 is currently being recruited to and further savings 
are expected once the final structure for phase 2 is in place. 

3.3.2 The budget setting process for 2020/21 onwards has already begun with the 
preparation of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and the approval of the Budget 
Strategy by Council on 23 July 2019.  Budget Change Bids will be requested and it is 
anticipated that options to deliver a balanced 2020/21 budget will be presented to 
Cabinet on 27 November 2019. These options will include the impact of future budget 
pressures and any potential recurring savings that are identified from the 2019/20 
budget monitoring.  

3.3.3 As was highlighted in the Medium Term Financial Plan approved by Council on 23 July 
2019 there is higher than usual uncertainty around future funding from the Government 
from April 2020 when the current multi-year settlement expires.  This is largely due to 
the potential timing of Brexit and the change in Prime Minister.  An update on this 
position will be reported as part of the Quarter 2 financial monitoring report. 

3.4 Capital programme 

3.4.1 As outlined earlier, further to the £12.339m capital programme approved in February 
2019 as part of the 2019/20 budget, re-profiling of £3.114m into 2019/20 was reported 
to cabinet at its meeting on the 24 April 2019.  Council on 23 July 2019 approved a 
revised capital programme to include the following adjustments:  

Table 4: Capital Programme changes since February 2019 
 

£000 

2019/20 Capital Programme as per Council report Feb 2019 12,338.7 

Carry Forwards approved April 2019 3,144.1 

Coastal Communities Fund 818.3 

Income contribution Abbot Hall playground - gross up exp budget 32.2 

Lottery funding of Maryfell playground 10.0 

Income for Nobles Rest 1.3 

Lottery funding for Rayrigg Meadow play area 10.0 

Windermere & Bowness Civic Soc funding for Biskey Howe 1.2 

2019/20 Capital Programme Q1 16,355.8 

 

3.4.2 Spend against the £16.4m programme to the end of quarter 1 was £1.027m with a 
further £1.313m committed expenditure through purchase orders. No re-profiling has 
been identified to date. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



Table 5: Summary of capital programme and expenditure 

Lead 
Full Year 
Budget 

£000 

Expenditure 
£000 

Budget 
Remaining 

£000 

Changes 
required to 

2019/20 
 £000 

Anticipated 
re-profiling 

 £000 

Support Services 588 0 588 0 0 

Digital 87 35 51 0 0 

Specialist Services 3,505 0 3,505 0 0 

Delivery and Commercial 
Services 

6,483 327 6,156 0 0 

Strategy 5,098 497 4,601 580 0 

Customer and Locality Services 595 168 427 0 0 

Grand Total 16,356 1,027 15,329 580 0 

 

3.4.3 Appendix 2 contains further comments and updates on all capital schemes. 

3.4.4 In prior years there has been significant re-profiling of the capital programme. The 
profiling of the existing programme will be challenged as part of the 2020/21 budget 
process.  

3.5 Treasury Management 

3.5.1 There are no issues to report in terms of compliance with the approved Treasury 
Management Strategy for the quarter. Appendix 3 contains an overview of the 
Council’s position against the agreed indicators and limits. 

3.5.2 To date the Council’s investments have performed well against market expectations. 
There are some indications that the bank rate could be cut again as low as 0.25% in 
the event of a no deal Brexit, this view has started to gain traction with investment rates 
starting to fall off their recent levels. The budget was set with the expectation of a stable 
base rate, so officers will be monitoring this closely. 

3.5.3 All investment activity has been within the approved limits in the quarter. Investment 
return continues to outperform the benchmarks in the current environment. Borrowing 
is not expected to change and no repayment is planned at the current time, due to 
market conditions. 

3.6 Collection Fund 

3.6.1 Table 5 below sets out the quarter 1 performance on local tax collection. The Council 
Tax Collection figure at 30 June 2019 is 30.23%, an increase of 0.11% compared to 
the same period last year. 

3.6.2 The Non-Domestic Rates (NDR) collection rate figure is 29.25% which is 0.33% lower 
than last year.  The table below shows the NDR quarter 1 collection rate has generally 
been decreasing each year for the past 5 years, a large part of this is due to the 
increasing numbers of business opting to pay over 12 instalments rather than the 10 
that were the maximum permitted until regulations changed in April 2014, resulting in 
payments being due in February & March and so being paid in quarter 4. 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



          Table 6: Local Taxation Collection rate 

 

 

3.7 Sundry Debts 

3.7.1 The aim of this section is to describe the current debt position and to provide assurance 
over collection performance. Table 7 below summarises the current collection rate on 
sundry debts: 

          Table 7: Summary of collection 

 

An analysis of outstanding sundry debts reveals that over 99% of debts have been 
recovered in years up to 2017/18. 

98% of the debt for 2018/19 has been recovered, of the outstanding amount 35% is 
due to one invoice for dangerous structure work, 15% for encroachment invoices 
and 7% for premises licences. There are instalment plans in place for some of 
these debts and 35% of the total due on these accounts had been paid in year.   

In the current year to date, 83% of debt has been recovered. The table below splits 
down in more detail the age profile of the current outstanding debts. 

Table 8: Age profile of 2019/20 invoices 

2019/20 Invoices £000 

3 months overdue 75 

2 months overdue 68 

1 month overdue 86 

Not yet due 125 

Total end of Quarter 1 354 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Senior management, budget holders and the Finance Portfolio Holder have been 
consulted.  

 

Percentage 
Collected 
Quarter 1 

2014/15 

% 

2015/16 

% 

2016/17 

% 

2017/18 

% 

2018/19 

% 

2019/20 

% 

 

 

Council Tax 30.16 30.62 30.14 30.65 30.12 30.23  

Business 
Rates 

31.10 30.95 29.77 29.90 29.58 29.25  

 

2014/15 
and 

earlier 
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

2019/20 
to date 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Debt outstanding 76 14 25 37 111 304 

Total value of invoices/credit 
notes raised 

24,014 4,606 5,028 5,087 5,699 1,825 

Collection Rate (%) 99.68 99.70 99.50 99.27 98.05 83.36 

Page 31



5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 There are no alternative options. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Regular budget monitoring forms part of the corporate governance arrangements that 
support all Council priorities. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Financial and resource information are contained within the report  

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no direct Human Resources implications of the report 

Legal 

7.3 There are no direct legal implications of the report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report is an historic view of Q1 financial performance. The overall impact assessment 
of the choices and decisions required to set the annual budget is undertaken at 
budget setting time. 

7.6 There are no additional health, social, economic and environmental impacts as a 
result of the report 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
report is an historic view of Q1 financial performance. The overall impact assessment 
of the choices and decisions required to set the annual budget is undertaken at 
budget setting time. 

7.9 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: There are no additional equality impacts 
as a result of the report 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Not effectively managing 
budgets could lead to 
overspending. 

Possible legal challenge, 
audit qualification and ultra 
vires expenditure. 

Scrutiny of budgets 
through review of 
monitoring reports. 

Recurring pressures or savings 
are not identified 

Medium Term Financial 
Planning may not reflect 
the future impact of current 
issues. 

Regular monitoring of 
budgets in year to inform 
the MTFP and annual 
budget setting process. 

Contact Officers 

Claire Read, Finance Specialist, Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793152 

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist and S151 Officer, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, 
01539 793147 

Page 32

mailto:Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk


Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

Appendix 1 Detailed Revenue Budget Monitoring  

Appendix 2 Detailed Capital Budget Monitoring 

Appendix 3 Treasury Management  Review 

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

2019/20 Budget Book including 
MTFP projections 

https://tinyurl.com/y2ecr5ja  

Budget Setting Report https://tinyurl.com/y2ecr5ja 

Medium Term Financial Plan 
2019/20-2023/24 

https://tinyurl.com/y48ka7kk  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 18/07/2019 

Section 151 Officer 16/07/2019 

Monitoring Officer 18/07/2019 

CMT 18/07/2019 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 26/07/2019 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 16/08/2019 

Executive (Cabinet) 11/09/2019 

Council 09/10/2019 

 

Page 33

https://tinyurl.com/y2ecr5ja
https://tinyurl.com/y2ecr5ja
https://tinyurl.com/y48ka7kk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Appendix 1

Service Portfolio

Expenditure 
Budget Full 

Year
£

Income Budget 
Full Year

£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date

£

Income
Variance
to Date

£

Overall
Variance
to Date

£

Out-turn 
projection

>£10k

Customer 
Connect 
Savings

Commentary 

Strategy, Innovation and Resources

Strategy Lead Specialist
Other Strategy 2,569,925 -12,076 -5,042 2,115 -2,927 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Strategy Lead Specialist 2,569,925 -12,076 -5,042 2,115 -2,927 0 0

Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Lead Specialist
Other Performance, Innovation and Commissioning 1,431,426 -9,400 -14,471 7,600 -6,871 5,770 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Performance, Innovation and Commissioning  1,431,426 -9,400 -14,471 7,600 -6,871 5,770 0

Operational Lead Support Services

DSO Support Services Customer Comm 
Serv and People 754,789 0 0 0 0 19,796 0 £20k overspend on salaries for transition period following 

restructure

GEL Elections
Climate 
Emergency and 
Localism

449,376 -198,227 3,465 0 3,465 6,270 0 Phase 1 post - Electoral Services Assistant - CC Transitional 
Costs £6k.

GER Electoral Registration
Climate 
Emergency and 
Localism

147,426 -31,071 3,900 12 3,911 9,405 0 Phase 1 post - Electoral Services Assistant - CC Transitional 
Costs £9k.

Other Support Services 131,252 -10,724 -19,323 2,104 -17,219 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Operational Lead Support Services 1,482,843 -240,022 -11,959 2,116 -9,843 35,471 0

Finance Lead Secialist

EFS Financial Services Finance and 
Resources -592,383 -4,000 26,992 991 27,983 61,387 0 Additional cost of interim cover identified as service critical £52k

ERE Asst Dir Resources Finance and 
Resources -96,649 0 18,514 0 18,514 19,364 0 £19k overspend on salaries for transition period following 

restructure

EXC Management Team Promoting South 
Lakeland -359,334 0 19,787 0 19,787 25,429 0 £25k overspend on salaries for transition period following 

restructure

GBN Council Tax Benefits Finance and 
Resources 350,679 -65,826 1,062 -11,005 -9,943 -11,000 0 Localised Council Tax Support Admin Grant greater than 

anticipated £11k.

GTH Other Items Finance and 
Resources 22,500 -17,500 -5,219 -11 -5,229 -190,000 0 £190k Saving made on insurance costs following re-tendering the 

contract
GZZ Other GF Items Finance and 

Resources 581,530 0 0 0 0 0 -581,530 Customer Connect Phase 1 Saving £582k
Other Finance 18,838,862 -17,236,031 -13,080 6,474 -6,606 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Finance Lead Specialist 18,745,205 -17,323,357 48,057 -3,550 44,507 -94,820 -581,530

Human Resources Lead Specialist

ERS Employee Relations Customer Comm 
Serv and People -125,953 -3,379 -19,084 845 -18,239 -55,000 0 Underspend due to vacant posts part offset by interim cover £55k

Other Human Resources 62,872 0 -2,215 0 -2,215 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Human Resources Lead Specialist -63,081 -3,379 -21,299 845 -20,454 -55,000 0

Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
GMM Members Customer Comm 

Serv and People 459,630 0 -16,247 0 -16,247 -15,000 0 Unclaimed Member's Allowance
Other Legal, Governance and Democracy 1,389,182 -33,025 -2,533 -352 -2,885 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Spe 1,848,812 -33,025 -18,780 -352 -19,132 -15,000 0

Digital Lead Specialist

ERI Information Services Housing and 
Innovation 0 0 -23,151 1 -23,150 -31,000 0

3 Vacant Posts - Shared Data & Information Security Officer, ICT 
Programme Co-Ordinator.  Digital Development Officer post 
vacant until Dec19 due to secondment.    

Total Digital Lead Specialist 0 0 -23,151 1 -23,150 -31,000 0

The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue budget variance projections  based on data up to 30/06/2019 Quarter 1

P
age 35



Service Portfolio

Expenditure 
Budget Full 

Year
£

Income Budget 
Full Year

£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date

£

Income
Variance
to Date

£

Overall
Variance
to Date

£

Out-turn 
projection

>£10k

Customer 
Connect 
Savings

Commentary 

Total Strategy, Innovation and Resources 26,015,130 -17,621,259 -46,646 8,774 -37,872 -154,579 -581,530

Customer and Commercial Services

Operational Lead Customer and Locality Services

ECU Customer Services Customer Comm 
Serv and People -65,098 0 -4,412 0 -4,412 14,349 0 Phase 1 Transitional costs £14k relating to Web Development Co-

ordinator

ERB Revenues and Benefits Finance and 
Resources 18,633 -84,315 13,688 0 13,688 34,209 0 £34k overspend on salaries for transition period following 

restructure

GCK Car Parks Customer Comm 
Serv and People 2,772,335 -4,670,876 -4,431 15,160 10,730 40,000 0 £14k overspend on rates bills; £41k salary underspend due to 

vacant posts; £67k demand led shortfall on car park income

GLW Lake Windermere Economy Culture 
and Leisure 790,486 -1,459,540 -9,534 11,342 1,808 31,000 0

£11k demand led shortfall expected on Jetty Berths due to 1 berth 
being empty; potential £20k shortfall on Encroachment Rent 
income

GPK Parks and Open Spaces Customer Comm 
Serv and People 1,226,934 -73,864 -6,936 -17,110 -24,046 -41,000 0

£41k surplus income relating to recharge to CCC for grass verge 
maintenance dating back to 17/18 following grass verges being re-
measured

Other Customer and Locality Services 721,269 -233,632 -15,877 -3,082 -18,958 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Operational Lead Customer and Locality Ser 5,464,559 -6,522,227 -27,502 6,310 -21,192 78,558 0

Operational Lead Specialist Services

ESE AD Strategic Development Housing and 
Innovation -81,105 0 20,314 0 20,314 35,000 0 £35k overspend on salaries for transition period following 

restructure

GBC Building Control Housing and 
Innovation 570,896 -335,641 3,514 10,625 14,139 27,000 0 Potential demand led income shortfall of £27k with Building 

Control fees for approvals and inspections

GCH Community Housing Fund Housing and 
Innovation 72,358 0 13,552 0 13,552 0 0

Pending carry forward £37.4k, may need to draw £6k from the 
reserve XRR85 for Community Led Housing Officer post due to 
end Sept 19

GDC Development Control Housing and 
Innovation 1,230,350 -536,880 8,897 14,419 23,316 37,000 0

Agency posts may need extending to cover to end of Dec 19, 
potential £50k overspend; £13k demand led surplus expected on 
planning income

GEN Housing Enabling Role Housing and 
Innovation 3,813,900 0 -11,410 0 -11,410 -28,000 0 Vacant posts £50k offset by agency £22k

GLC Local Land Charges Housing and 
Innovation 273,963 -250,000 1,133 7,172 8,305 18,000 0 Potential demand led shortfall of £18k on land charge income

Other Specialist Services 2,178,213 -111,790 -3,848 3,255 -592 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Operational Lead Specialist Services 8,058,575 -1,234,311 32,152 35,472 67,624 89,000 0

Operational Lead Case Management
EUN Community Services Customer Comm 

Serv and People -204,071 -200 -63,952 -375 -64,327 -70,000 0 £70k salary savings projected due to various vacant posts
Other Case Management 3,715,560 -904,837 -17,525 14,116 -3,409 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Operational Lead Case Management 3,511,489 -905,037 -81,476 13,741 -67,735 -70,000 0

Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services

EHS Health and Safety Customer Comm 
Serv and People -4,725 -600 -10,518 150 -10,368 -19,000 0 £47k underspend on salaries, to be part offset by consultancy 

costs of circa £28k

EPX Offices Finance and 
Resources 28,611 -8,271 -11,133 1,747 -9,387 -40,000 0

Premises expenses on Langstone House, Broad St due to 
budgets being removed as Saving 2015, budget virement 
required; potential underspend on salaries for Building Cleaners 
£40k

GTG Street Cleansing Client Customer Comm 
Serv and People 1,417,852 -6,608 -2,621 1,283 -1,338 17,000 0 £17k potential overspend on fuel

GTS Transport Customer Comm 
Serv and People 80,502 -80,502 19,974 3,767 23,741 42,000 0 £42k overspend projected on transport repairs and maintenance

GWC Waste Coll Disposal Client Customer Comm 
Serv and People 51,937 -40,000 -2,204 -7,932 -10,136 0 0 Individual variances <£10k

P
age 36



Service Portfolio

Expenditure 
Budget Full 

Year
£

Income Budget 
Full Year

£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date

£

Income
Variance
to Date

£

Overall
Variance
to Date

£

Out-turn 
projection

>£10k

Customer 
Connect 
Savings

Commentary 

GWK Kerbside Coll Recycling 
Client

Customer Comm 
Serv and People 5,538,798 -1,580,636 39,272 30,823 70,095 220,000 0

£153k salary overspend (of which £99k vacancy saving) due to 
vacant posts and long term sick; £60k projected underspend on 
tipping and disposal; £24k projected shortfall on kerbside 
recycling credits; £103k projected shortfall on sale of materials 
due to current market price of materials

GWR Waste Recycling Customer Comm 
Serv and People 272,767 -149,175 -7,781 9,294 1,514 -26,000 0 £46k underspend expected on Bring Site contract price, part 

offset by £20k demand led shortfall on Bring Site recycling credits

Other Delivery and Commercial Services 1,834,255 -1,123,859 -32,153 8,630 -23,523 0 0 Individual variances <£10k
Total Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial S 9,219,997 -2,989,651 -7,165 47,763 40,598 194,000 0

Total Customer and Commercial Services 26,254,620 -11,651,226 -83,991 103,285 19,295 291,558 0

Corporate items
VGS58 Statutory adj.  Capital 

Charges
0 -8,333,427 0 0 0 0 -32,920 0 Minimum Revenue Provision - reflects actual expenditure 2018/19 

lower than budgeted
Other Corporate Items 21,351,036 -35,274,873 0 0 0 0
Total Corporate items 13,017,609 -35,274,873 0 0 0 -32,920 0

Total Corporate Items 13,017,609 -35,274,873 0 0 0 -32,920 0

Total GF 65,287,359 -64,547,358 -130,637 112,059 -18,578 104,059 -581,530
Net GF 740,001P

age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 38



Appendix 2

Lead/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

Changes 

required to 

2019/20

 £

Anticipated re-

profiling

 £

Commentary 

KIT27 Mobile Working Housing and Innovation 120,000 0 -120,000 Specification and integration with new digital platform to be 

assessed before project can begin.

KIT30 Digital Innovation Project Housing and Innovation 468,300 0 -468,300 Commitments made but awaiting project board decisions.

588,300 0 -588,300 0 0

Digital

KIT90 IT Replacement Fund Housing and Innovation 86,700 35,315 -51,385 Purchase of laptops and other IT equipment as per replacement 

schedule.

86,700 35,315 -51,385 0 0

KDE06 ERDF Funded Flood Defence 

Works

Climate Emergency and 

Localism

2,226,700 0 -2,226,700 Planning permission granted and EA Internal Business Case in 

place. Grant and partnership agreements signed but some 

scheme slippage and no spend in 2019/20 anticipated. 

KDE07 Coastal Communities Fund Climate Emergency and 

Localism

818,300 0 -818,300 CCF project started 1 May 2019, funded by MHCLG. Scheme is 

over two years. We will received funding for SLDC and 

Morecambe Bay Partnership, then we will pay over to MBP their 

share. SLDC is accountable body. Scheme is £818.3k (SLDC 

£500k, MBP £318.3k) in 2019/20 and £1,532.9k (SLDC £500k, 

MBP £1,032.9k) in 2020/21. Scheme is for works at Grange 

promenade, start in 2020 and will complete 2021.

KAH11 Other Housing Schemes 

(Cross-a-Moor junction 

improvements)

Housing and Innovation 300,000 0 -300,000 Highways England leading scheme to build a roundabout to 

enable delivery of 1000 homes. Discussions on-going re 

specifics of funding agreement to include SLDC's £300k and 

£1.7m developer contributions. SLDC contribution now to be paid 

in 2020.

KMR31 Festival Infrastructure Customer Comm Serv and 

People

24,000 0 -24,000 £24k scheme for lamp post banners in Kendal being actively 

developed, with involvement of Kendal Town Council.

SLDC 2019/20 Capital Programme Monitoring Quarter 1

Support Services

Total Digital

Specialist Services

Total Support Services

P
age 39



Appendix 2

Lead/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

Changes 

required to 

2019/20

 £

Anticipated re-

profiling

 £

Commentary 

SLDC 2019/20 Capital Programme Monitoring Quarter 1

KPE18 Towpath Trail Kendal-

Lancaster

Economy Culture and 

Leisure

120,000 0 -120,000 Remaining £120k payment to CCC to be made. Delay due to 

new land agent and requirement for agent to deliver a report 

following land owner consultation. Funding agreement awaiting 

outcome of the report - expect to make payment this financial 

year.

KRE53 Kendal Public Realm Economy Culture and 

Leisure

15,735 0 -15,735 Budget can now be given up as experimental traffic order for 

Kendal Market Place unlikely to go ahead.

Total Specialist Services 3,504,735 0 -3,504,735 0 0

Delivery and Commerical Services

KCD01 Castle Dairy Economy Culture and 

Leisure

4,032 0 -4,032 Work complete and defects remedied. Retention payments to 

liquidator/ third party agreed, awaiting invoices.

KAH14 Homeless Accommodation Housing and Innovation 461,400 0 -461,400 50% of work expected in this year and 50% next year.

KFL01 Footway Lighting Customer Comm Serv and 

People

65,700 0 -65,700 Spend dependant on Electricity North West and Cumbria CC 

programming works.

KLH02 Ulverston Asset Transfer 

programme

Economy Culture and 

Leisure

79,767 0 -79,767 UCE now developing a business case for long-term use of funds, 

to payment will be delayed until completed.

KLH07 SL House & KTH 

reconfiguration

Economy Culture and 

Leisure

947,500 0 -947,500 Planning application expected July, works expected to start in 

January next year.

KLH08 Abbot Hall redevelopment Economy Culture and 

Leisure

100,000 0 -100,000 Arts Council funding now confirmed. Legal agreement to be 

drawn up - payment likely to be in phases as project milestones 

are achieved, timing of payments currently uncertain.

KLL17 Ferry Nab redevelopment Economy Culture and 

Leisure

0 5,000 5,000 Work complete in 2018/19. Final contract payment slipped into 

new year, to be covered by virement from planned maintenance.

KMR21 Kendal Museum alterations Customer Comm Serv and 

People

85,000 0 -85,000 Management agreement in place, awaiting legal agreement 

between Kendal Town Council and Kendal College.

KMR33 Braithwaite Fold Caravan 

Park

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

186,859 136,731 -50,128 Works will be completed by end of June.

KMR34 Kendal Castle Customer Comm Serv and 

People

41,000 490 -40,510 Works to start in the summer and complete September.

KPY42 Car Park machines update Customer Comm Serv and 

People

137,395 0 -137,395 Work done, payment in dispute pending resolution of outstanding 

issues. 

KPY44 Town and Car Park/public 

information Signs

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

11,700 0 -11,700 Tender documents being collated for PSPO signage.

P
age 40



Appendix 2

Lead/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

Changes 

required to 

2019/20

 £

Anticipated re-

profiling

 £

Commentary 

SLDC 2019/20 Capital Programme Monitoring Quarter 1

KPY45 SLH Car Park - structural 

repair and re-surfacing works

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

370,386 145,491 -224,895 Work complete, awaiting invoice.

KPY46 Car Park Resurfacing Customer Comm Serv and 

People

105,270 803 -104,467 Further design work needed on the last car park in the re-

surfacing scheme because of insufficient soakaway properties, 

will take place in 2019/20.  

KPY48 Parkside Rd Car Park Customer Comm Serv and 

People

153,826 0 -153,826 Planning approved. Parking study appraisal confirmed need for 

car park. Works on site in September.

KPY49 Windermere Rd Car Park 

Grange

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

100,000 0 -100,000 Cumbria County Council leading on scheme, SLDC's contribution 

will be a one-off payment as determined by CCC's progress.

KRE04 Grange Regeneration 

Programme

Economy Culture and 

Leisure

157,300 0 -157,300 Scheme linked to Coastal Communities Fund scheme above. 

Start in early 2020 and will complete in 2021.

KRE55 New Road Common Economy Culture and 

Leisure

0 300 300 Scheme complete in 2018/19. Final retention payment on 

groundworks paid, slightly exceeding estimate.

KRE66 Grange Promenade structural 

works

Economy Culture and 

Leisure

395,992 7,033 -388,960 Work has started with consultants re drainage repairs by United 

Utilities. Meeting held with Natural England, assessment taken 

place and response received. Ecological surveys have now been 

ordered and these will take place between May and August 2019. 

Works on site from January 2020 through to June 2020.

KRE67 Grange LIDO Economy Culture and 

Leisure

960,000 0 -960,000 Planning expected end of July 2019 and aim to have contract in 

place in January 2020. Work to start March 2020

KSC91 Refurb Replace Recycled 

Bins

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

112,250 29,985 -82,265 Procurement has taken place and bins ordered for delivery in 

phases throughout the year.

KSC91 Vehicle Purchase Customer Comm Serv and 

People

1,868,700 450 -1,868,250 Vehicle specifications being reviewed with hybrid options and 

future service delivery in mind. Actual vehicle requirements may 

differ from proposed programme.

KXB27 Energy Saving Building 

Enhancement

Climate Emergency and 

Localism

139,200 900 -138,300

Total Delivery and Commercial Services 6,483,277 327,183 -6,156,094 0 0

Strategy

KAH10 Affordable Homes TC Prop 

Empty

Housing and Innovation 379,000 40,000 -339,000 Empty homes grants £40k paid so far in year. Housing 

association grant payments delayed. £20k oayment for 

Milnthorpe scheme due to be paid.

P
age 41



Appendix 2

Lead/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

Changes 

required to 

2019/20

 £

Anticipated re-

profiling

 £

Commentary 

SLDC 2019/20 Capital Programme Monitoring Quarter 1

KAH13 Commuted Sums Affordable 

Housing

Housing and Innovation 86,000 0 -86,000

KGD21 Mand Disabled Fac Grants Housing and Innovation 661,000 167,286 -493,714

KRT10 Right To Buy Replacement Housing and Innovation 0 247,500 247,500 495,000

KCH01 Community Housing Fund Housing and Innovation 470,000 7,769 -462,232

KIF01 Housing Investment Fund Housing and Innovation 3,000,000 0 -3,000,000

KEP52 Disabled Toilet 

Improvements

Health Wellbeing Financial 

Res

50,000 0 -50,000

KMR35 Burton Heritage Grant 

Scheme

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

80,000 5,000 -75,000 85,000

KIL01 Community Infrastructure 

Levy (CIL)

Housing and Innovation 0 13,721 13,721

KIP01 Locally Important Projects Economy Culture and 

Leisure

371,646 15,250 -356,396

Grant applications re-profiled from 2018/19.

Ongoing high uptake on scheme. Settlement is now lower than 

anticipated so may be a sortfall.

Payment of £495k grant to SLH was anticipated before 31 March 

so carry forward was not requested. Subsequent delay means 

payment to be made in two instalments in 2019/20 when 

contractual obligations are met - first instalment paid May 2019. 

Budget will require reinstating in 2019/20.

Schemes in Windermere, Levens and Ulverston under way.

Discussions ongoing regarding the terms of loan payments. 

Expected to begin making loans in this financial year.

Contracts for feasibility being arranged for Cartmel and Outside 

In community group. Millerground being arranged by SLDC/LSH. 

Commencement date of capital works uncertain until studies 

completed.

Scheme gross cost is £240k, funded jointly by SLDC, Heritage 

England and Burton PC. Original plan was phased over 3 years 

from 2019/20, with £80k allocated to each year. Updated plan 

starts in 2019/20 and is phased over two years - £165k 2019/20 

(funded SLDC £70k, Heritage England £80k and Burton PC 

£15k) and £75k in 2020/21 (funded SLDC £35k, Heritage 

England £40k). Budget adjustments therefore required to reflect 

the new phasing, including £85k increase in budget 2019/20. 

Grant scheme established for improvements to heritage buildings 

and attracting much interest. Public realm enhancements also to 

be taken from this pot and design work underway.

Discussions with CCC over education contributions and local 

transport links. Forecast to grow quite significantly in the next few 

years.

Contracts being arranged for schemes before payments can be 

made. Awaiting call-in period from 2nd round additional schemes.

Total Strategy 5,097,646 496,525 -4,601,121 580,000 0

KLL18 Cockshott Point entrance 

improvements

Economy Culture and 

Leisure

1,470 0 -1,470 LIPS funded scheme, will be progressed in year.

Customer and Locality Services

P
age 42



Appendix 2

Lead/code Scheme Portfolio

Full Year

Budget

£

Expenditure

£

Variance

to Date

£

Changes 

required to 

2019/20

 £

Anticipated re-

profiling

 £

Commentary 

SLDC 2019/20 Capital Programme Monitoring Quarter 1

KNM51 Play Areas Customer Comm Serv and 

People

20,000 0 -20,000 To be allocated as year 2 play audit planned works. Programme 

to be confirmed by end of September.

KNM54 Rinkfield Playground Customer Comm Serv and 

People

3,447 0 -3,447 project complete.

KNM55 Hallgarth Phase 2 Customer Comm Serv and 

People

24,866 13,834 -11,032 Equipment currently being installed, to complete end of June.

KNM56 Millerground Play Project Customer Comm Serv and 

People

47,700 938 -46,762 Phase 2 of footpath works to commence September, complete 

December.

KNM58 Kendal Parks playground Customer Comm Serv and 

People

10,900 0 -10,900 Need to confirm final budget for Hayclose Crescent.

KNM59 Lightburn Park MUGA & 

playground

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

36,000 0 -36,000 Awaiting final grant claim outcome. Out to tender in October.

KNM60 Abbot Hall Playground Customer Comm Serv and 

People

95,230 1,403 -93,827 Total scheme cost will be £125k. Start on site end of June, to 

complete by end of August.

KNM61 Yew Tree Playground Grange Customer Comm Serv and 

People

60,000 74,000 14,000 Installation almost complete, open by the end of June.

KNM62 Greenbank & Castlefield Play 

Area

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

30,000 0 -30,000 Total scheme cost will be £75k. Out to tender, closing date mid 

July.

KNM63 Queens Park play area Customer Comm Serv and 

People

10,000 0 -10,000 Total scheme cost will be £200k. Major fundraising to take place 

in the summer so work several months away. 

KNM64 Broadgate Meadow 

Grasmere

Customer Comm Serv and 

People

35,000 0 -35,000 Total scheme cost will be £85k. Out to tender, closing date end 

of July.

KNM65 Maryfell Sedbergh Play Area Customer Comm Serv and 

People

71,500 0 -71,500 Playground open, snagging works to finalise, payment to be 

made by end of July.

KNM66 Rayrigg Meadow Play Area Customer Comm Serv and 

People

120,000 77,294 -42,706 Playground installed. Snagging work to complete. Payment to be 

made mid July.

KNM67 Beck trim Trail Customer Comm Serv and 

People

1,000 0 -1,000 Councillor contribution. Consultation to take place in July, finalise 

scheme in September.

KNM69 Biskey Howe Customer Comm Serv and 

People

4,805 282 -4,523 Final funding contribution now received so order has been placed 

for works.

KNM70 HMCLG funded schemes Customer Comm Serv and 

People

15,020 0 -15,020 Budget reflects HMCLG funding received March 2019, to be 

alloctaed to schemes during the year. Grant was for £16,375 - 

£1,355 has already been allocated to Biskey Howe.

KLR31 Nobles Rest park 

improvements

Economy Culture and 

Leisure

8,240 0 -8,240 Retention payment outstanding on main works and bog garden 

project in discussion with friends group also planned.

Total Customer and Locality Services 595,178 167,750 -427,428 0 0

16,355,836 1,026,773 -15,329,063 580,000 0GRAND TOTAL

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 44



Appendix 3 

2019/20 Quarter 1 Treasury Management Update 

This appendix reviews treasury performance for the period 01/04/2019 – 30/06/2019 against 
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, which was approved by Council on  
26th February 2019. 

The Councils Treasury Management operation ensures cash flows are adequately planned, 
with surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity 
initially, before considering optimising investment return. 

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s 
capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, this 
is the element of the capital programme that is not financed from external grants, capital 
receipts or other contributions. Which when added to the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) shows the underlying borrowing need of the Council. This underlying 
borrowing need is managed by the treasury team through short and long term borrowing 
arrangements and the use of longer term cash flow surpluses. 

 
Borrowing  

No new borrowing has been undertaken in the year to date, therefore the Council has maintained 
external borrowing at £12.8 million. As a result, gross and net borrowing are below the capital 
financing requirement (CFR). This is a key indicator as it shows that the Council is not borrowing 
to fund revenue activities or borrowing to lend-on. 
 
Table 1: Borrowing Limits 
 

 £m 
Actual borrowing 12.800 
Authorised limit 26,815 
Operational boundary 20,600 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 20,543 

 
Table 1 also shows that the Council hasn’t breached its operational boundary and authorised limit 
(which must not be breached) on external debt.   
 
The current premium on the Councils borrowing is circa 93% (i.e. £931k per £1m repaid), which 
would take over 25 years to repay. This is not low enough to consider making an early repayment, 
however we will keep this under review. 
 
The Capital Programme assumes borrowing will be used during 2019/20, the actual timing of 
borrowing will depend on timing of projects and expected changes in interest rates. Our internal 
borrowing position is currently estimated to be £7.743million or 38% of the CFR at year end, this 
has risen from 31% of CFR in 2018/19. This position will be carefully monitored against changes 
to reserves to ensure that the position is sustainable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



Appendix 3 

Investments 
 
Graph 1 below shows the movement on the Councils investment portfolio between 01/04/19 
and 30/06/19. 
 

 
 
 
The Council held £26.24m of investments as at 30 June 2019. Table 2 shows the outstanding 
investments by type. 
 
Table 2 Investment Summary 
 

Counterparty Value (£m) 
Call Operational  
 Blackrock 0.550 
 CCLA 1.390 
 Federated 4.300 
Fixed Operational  
 Bank of Scotland 2.000 
 Coventry Building Society 2.000 
 Newcastle Building Society 1.000 
 Nottingham Building Society 2.000 
 West Bromwich Building Society 2.000 
Fixed Core  
 Goldman Sachs 2.000 
 City of Kingston upon Hull 2.000 
 London Borough of Enfield 3.000 
 Newcastle Building Society 1.000 
 NatWest (Ring Fenced Bank) 1.000 
 Sumitomo Mitsui Bank 2.000 
   
 26.24 

 
 
 

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000
O

pe
ni

ng
 B

al
an

ce
03

/0
4/

20
19

06
/0

4/
20

19
09

/0
4/

20
19

12
/0

4/
20

19
15

/0
4/

20
19

18
/0

4/
20

19
21

/0
4/

20
19

24
/0

4/
20

19
27

/0
4/

20
19

30
/0

4/
20

19
03

/0
5/

20
19

06
/0

5/
20

19
09

/0
5/

20
19

12
/0

5/
20

19
15

/0
5/

20
19

18
/0

5/
20

19
21

/0
5/

20
19

24
/0

5/
20

19
27

/0
5/

20
19

30
/0

5/
20

19
02

/0
6/

20
19

05
/0

6/
20

19
08

/0
6/

20
19

11
/0

6/
20

19
14

/0
6/

20
19

17
/0

6/
20

19
20

/0
6/

20
19

23
/0

6/
20

19
26

/0
6/

20
19

29
/0

6/
20

19

Core Investments Fixed Operational Call Operational

Page 46



Appendix 3 

 
Graph 2 below shows the maturity profile of the Councils investment portfolio split between 
operational and core investment types 
 

 
 
 
Table 3 below summarised the performance to date, benchmarked against the London 
Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) that best matches the duration of the investments. For example, 
Call investments can be called back the same day and so the overnight LIBID rate is the bench 
mark. 
 
Table 3 Performance 

 Average 
Return 

Benchmark 
Rate Variance 

Call Operational 0.75% 0.55% 0.20% 
Fixed Operational 0.83% 0.68% 0.15% 
Fixed Core (Long Term) 0.93% 0.78% 0.15% 
Overall Average 0.82%   

 
All of the councils investments are performed in excess of their benchmarks, with the overall 
average outperforming the 6 month benchmark rate used for the Fixed Core (long term) 
investments. 
 
Other Considerations 

There is nothing to report here. 
 
Looking Forward 

After stronger than expected economic growth of 0.5% in quarter one, monthly growth fell in April 
before rising slightly in May. Expectation for quarter 2 is for growth to stall or contract. Brexit still 
remains an issue as the deadline was pushed back to Halloween.     
 
There has been no further movement in the Bank Rate since August’s increase to 0.75%, with 
investors reassessing their outlook from expecting a rate rise to now expecting cuts in the rate. Due 
to weakening global growth, expectations of rate cuts in the US and Europe, as well as growing 

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

Call 1 Month 1-3 Months 3-6 Months 6-12 Months 1-2 Years

Operational Core

Page 47



Appendix 3 

concerns over a no deal Brexit. Indeed in the Treasury Committee report in June the Governor of 
the Bank of England, gave the strongest hint yet that in the case of a no deal Brexit, the monetary 
policy Committee (MPC) would but rates. This has led to our advisors predicting that rates could 
be cut quickly from 0.75% to 0.25%. 
 
CPI inflation has been on a falling trend, reaching 2% in May in line with the MPC target of 2%. 
Expectation is for CPI to remain around this level over the next two years and in the event of No 
deal expectation is it could rise to 4% as a result of imported inflation on the back of a weakened 
pound. 
 

Conclusion 

The Council Investments continue to perform well against benchmarks, with all activity within 
approved limits and borrowing has been maintained at £12.8 million within the debt indicators. 

Page 48



South Lakeland District Council 

Council 

9th OCTOBER 2019 

Member Support Steering Group - Annual Update 

 

Portfolio:  Cllr Eric Morrell - Customer and Commercial Services and People     
Portfolio Holder  

Report from:  Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Monitoring Officer)   

Wards:  Not applicable 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 

1.1 The expected outcome is that Members are equipped with the skills, knowledge and 
behaviours to support their roles within their communities, that Members will be 
informed to make decisions that affect their communities and that the Council will be 
compliant with its statutory duties. 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 Council is requested to:-  

(1) Note the training statistics set out at Appendix A. 
(2) Approve the mandatory training as contained in Appendix B and the 

associated reporting mechanisms as referred to in paragraphs 3.5 – 3.6 of 
this report. 

(3) Approve the revisions to the Member Development Strategy with effect 
from the start of this municipal year as set out in Appendix E.  

(4) Approve the updated role profiles for Members as set out at Appendix D. 
(5) Confirm that externally paid for training is supported by an up to date 

personal development plan (PDP) to ensure value for money. 
 
 3.0  BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

 3.1 The Member Support Steering Group (MSSG), which meets quarterly, was set up to 
enable officers to progress member support and member development.  It is a non-
partisan group containing members from all political parties currently forming the 
Council.  Its remit is to oversee the roll-out of the Member Development Programme, 
to champion the mechanisms needed to support elected Members in achieving their 
aspirations and aiding the Council in attaining its corporate objectives and the 
implementation of the Customer Connect programme. 

3.2 The MSSG current membership is:- 

 Cllr Eric Morrell, Cllr Mark Wilson, Cllr Pete McSweeney, Cllr John Holmes, Cllr 
Helen Ladhams and Cllr Janette Jenkinson. 

 Training & Development 

3.3 In the Member Development Protocol, Appendix E of The Member Support Strategy 
(2017-2020) training was split into one of three categories: 

Page 49

Item No.7



 Required training 

 Important training 

 Other training 

The ‘Required training’, was the only one of the three categories that had a definition, 
which was ‘training that must be undertaken’. ‘Important training’ did not have any 
definition, and, as such, has been left open to interpretation as to whether or not 
Members need to attend. The number of Members attending ‘Important training’ has 
been low, of 778 workshop spaces, only 201 were taken, (26% of optional training 
was attended overall). A fuller breakdown is available in Appendix A of this report. 
At times, it has been necessary to cancel training sessions at short notice, due to the 
withdrawal of Members. 
 

3.4 For the avoidance of doubt, and to provide clarity for Members, MSSG has agreed 

that the training should be broken down into two categories; Mandatory and Optional.  

Mandatory training includes training needed for Members to complete the activities in 

their role of Councillor (i.e. Committee training) or training required to prevent the 

Council being placed at risk from not training Members adequately (i.e. Equality and 

Diversity training, Safeguarding training) – see Appendix B. Optional training is 

recommended for widening Member breadth of knowledge, skills and experience, 

however, there is no requirement for this to be completed – see Appendix C.  

 

3.5 In order to ensure maximum attendance at required training events, it is suggested 

that we introduce a reporting process for not attending.  There are already some 

control contained within the Constitution in relation to training for Licensing 

Committee Members (Section 2.8, General Role and Code of Conduct) and a list of 

the suggested reporting process is provided at Appendix B.  It is suggested that, 

with the support of Group Leaders, changes will be made to the relevant Protocols 

contained within the Constitution to reflect these new processes.  

 

3.6 It is intended that the introduction of reporting for non-attendance at Mandatory 

training will encourage better attendance, reduce wasted Officer time through 

duplicated effort where courses need to be repeated due to non-attendance and will 

ensure a consistency in training and messages delivered as fewer sessions will 

hopefully be required. This will support our Members to become better skilled in the 

areas within which they operate.  The reporting processes set out in Appendix B 

have been recommended by MSSG. 

 

3.7 As a result of reviewing the Constitution and the information from other Authorities, it 

is recommended that the reporting process for not attending training events depend 

upon the training activity and the impact that non-attendance will have on the Council 

and its ability to operate.  

 

3.8 In order to understand how other Authorities encourage attendance at mandatory 

training events and what they put in place to address this, Committee Services 

contacted a number of Authorities as a benchmarking exercise.  

 

3.9  Following consultation with MSSG members and also the wider membership, 

changes were made to the Personal Development Plans (PDP) process for 2018/19.  

Page 50



This was done so as to provide value to Members from the PDP process.  Members 

have been asked to complete PDPs in line with the Member Development Strategy 

2017-2020 to identify learning needs and provide Officers with data to enable 

suitable and relevant training to be scheduled. It is recommended that all Members 

complete a PDP to ensure that there is an accurate picture of Member skills, 

knowledge and behaviours and so a relevant learning calendar is designed to 

support these needs.  

 

3.10 Members are able to submit requests for ad-hoc training provided by external training 

providers.  Typically, these come at a cost to the Council and, so as to ensure value 

for money for the Council, MSSG have agreed that it would be reasonable to request 

completed PDPs from any Member who submits an ad-hoc training request.  This is 

to ensure that any investment in such activity is relevant and aligned to the Member’s 

needs to support their ward and wider district. To support the PDP process, the form 

has now been made available to access on SharePoint.  Any PDP submitted will be 

reviewed by the Council’s Learning & Development Officer. 

 

3.11  It might also be helpful for a completed PDP to be discussed with the Group Leader, 

Group Deputy Leader or an Officer from Organisational Development to ensure that 

needs are adequately captured and detailed. Discussions can also help to identify 

appropriate learning for the Member.  

 

3.12 The Member Development Strategy has been updated to reflect the 

recommendations of the MSSG.  This is attached at Appendix E with the 

amendments shown in red.  In addition to the matters set out in this report, further 

changes have been made to update it in light of changes to officers and their roles 

since 2017 and to reflect current practices. 

 

 Member Role Profiles 

 

3.13 The Member role profiles were first approved in 2017.  These have been reviewed by 

MSSG and are attached at Appendix D.  They have been updated to reflect the 

changing role of Councillors in line with the 21st Century Councillor research referred 

to within the Member Development Strategy and the North West Employers Level 1 

Charter.  They have also been updated to make training and development integral to 

each role and to reflect the commitment that the authority makes to each elected 

Member.  The changes are shown in red. 

 

 Digital developments 

 

3.14 MSSG has, throughout 2018/19 supported officers in developing the digital offering 

available to Members.  The following services are now available online:- 

o Submission of expense claims (for Cabinet members – to be rolled out to 

wider Membership) 

o Submission of locality budget requests 

o Requests for ad-hoc training 

o Some subject specific training 

Page 51



 Officers also asked Members to undertake a digital audit survey to provide some 

benchmarking of the digital skills of the Council’s Membership.  The results of this 

survey were reported (anonymously) to the MSSG and, consequently, officers will be 

arranging some training sessions to demonstrate the online services available and 

are available to provide assistance to Members on an ongoing basis. 

 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Consultation has been undertaken with Member Support Steering Group the 
previous Portfolio Holder, Cllr Eric Morrell Customer and Commercial Services and 
People Portfolio Holder.and Cllr Harvey. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The alternative option is not to support the recommendations and continue with the 
current approach. This is not recommended as there will be less distinction between 
training requirements and it does not promote a culture of accountability for personal 
development.   

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

6.1 This report concerns the development of Members which links to all of the council’s 
priorities.   

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 Financial and Resources 

7.1.1   The recommendations and recommended amendments will support the Council’s 
cost saving aims as it will hopefully reduce levels of non-attendance and 
consequently will help to save Officers time in delivering duplicated training and will 
support effective and efficient decision making.  

7.2 Human Resources 

7.2.1 The recommendations above will be supported and managed within the existing 
resource. The resource needed to support the roll out of Member development is 
within existing capacity. 

7.3 Legal 

7.3.1 The Council is required to ensure that it operates in accordance with legislation.  The 
contents of this report assist the Council in ensuring that it can meet its statutory 
obligations.  

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
relates to the provision of training and has a neutral impact upon HSEE matters.*** 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This 
is an update report only. 

 

  Risk 

Page 52



Risk Consequence Controls required 

*What is it? *What will happen if steps 
not taken to control it? 

*What needs to be done to 
limit the risk happening? 

Members may not have the 
required skills and competencies 
to make the decisions that they 
are asked to make. 

The Council faces legal 
challenge arising out of the 
Council’s quasi-judicial 
functions. 

The provision of regular, 
thorough, subject-specific 
training to be provided to 
Members and Members 
ensure attendance at 
those sessions. 

Contact Officers 

Report Authors – Linda Fisher Interim Legal, Democracy and Governance Specialist  

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

A Member Attendance at Required and Optional Training 2018-19 

B 2019/20 Mandatory Training  

C 2019/20 Optional Training  

D Updated Member Role Profiles 

E Updated Member Development Strategy 2017-20 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Member Development Strategy 
2017 -20 

Here 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services Report author 

Section 151 Officer 7 May 2019 

Monitoring Officer 7 May 2019 

CMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 7 May 2019 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council 9TH October  2019 

 

Page 53

http://sharepoint/sites/membersupport/_layouts/15/start.aspx#/Member%20Development%20Strategy/Forms/AllItems.aspx


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Appendix A Member Attendance at Training 2018-19  

Required Training 

The following chart details the attendance at ‘Required’ Training during the previous training 

year (May 2018-19). It details the number of Members invited and the percentage attending 

for workshops. The numbers are low for some of the required training and we need to 

consider how we manage this moving forward.  

Required  Number 

Invited 

Percentage 

Attended 

Planning Induction 18 100 

Audit Training 7 86 

Licensing Training - Taxi/Committee Protocols 15 80 

Planning Workshop 18 78 

HR Appeals Training 9 78 

Standards Training 7 71 

Licensing-Premises 15 67 

How to be an Effective Member/Code of Conduct 13 25 

Chairing Committee 51 22 

 

Optional Training 

Member Attendance at Optional Training 2018-19 

The following chart details the attendance at ‘Optional’ Training during the previous training 

year (May 2018-19). It details the number of Members invited and the percentage attending 

for workshops. The numbers are low and we need to consider how we manage this moving 

forward.  

Optional Number 

Invited 

Percentage 

Attended 

Lake Admin 16 81 

Customer Connect Update 51 76 

HR Induction 9 56 

Member Induction 51 51 

IT Induction to SharePoint/Skype 39 36 

Page 55



Customer Connect Update 51 31 

Universal Credit 51 24 

Social Media and Web Skills 51 22 

Morecambe Bay Area Changes 51 22 

Know your Ward 51 20 

Safeguarding Children 51 20 

Fraud Briefing 51 18 

Risk Management-O & S 51 16 

Modern Slavery Briefing 51 16 

Procurement 51 10 

Homelessness Training 51 8 

Equality & Diversity-cancelled due to low numbers 51 0 

 

Page 56



Appendix B – Mandatory Training with suggested reporting/ impact of non attendance 

Mandatory 
Training 

Who By Current 
Delivery 
Method 

Additional Non Attendance 
Reportable/ Impact of non -

attendance  

Welcome Event Newly 
elected 

Within 1 
Month of 
Election 

Face to 
Face 

Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

Becoming an 
Effective 
Member/Code of 
Conduct 

All Within 1 
Month of 

Appointment 

Face to 
Face 

Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

Induction - IT Newly 
equipped 

Within 1 
Month of 
receiving 

equip 

Face to 
Face 

Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

Planning 
Committee 
Induction/Site 
Visit/Workshop 

New 
Planning 
Member 

Before 
Committee 

Face to 
Face 

Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

Licensing 
Committee 
Induction 

New 
Licensing 
Member 

Before 
Committee 

Face to 
Face 

Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

How to Conduct a 
Hearing (Licensing) 

Licensing 
CMs 

Before 
Committee 

Face to 
Face 

Not able to participate in 
decision making at  

committee meetings 

Standards 
Committee 

CM Before 
Committee 

Face to 
Face 

Not able to participate in 
decision making at committee 

meetings 

Audit Committee CM Before 
Committee 

Face to 
Face 

Not able to participate in 
decision making at committee 

meetings 

HR Induction New HR 
Member 

Before Appeal Face to 
Face 

Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

Human Resources 
Committee - 
Appeals 

HR CMs Before Appeal Face to 
Face 

Not able to be part of the 
Dismissal  Appeals Panel 

Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee  

CM Before 
Committee 

Face to 
Face 

Not able to participate in 
decision making at  

committee meetings 

GDPR  All Within 6 
Month of 

appointment 

Face to 
Face 

Member to pay next year’s 
Data Controllers fees 

FOI and Data 
Management 

All Within 6 
Month of 

appointment 

Face to 
Face 

Pay next year’s Data 
Controllers fees 

Equality & Diversity  All Within 6 
Month of 

appointment 

Face to 
Face 

Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

Prevent All Within 6 
Month of 

appointment 

E-learning Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

Page 57



Safeguarding 
Children Level 1 

All Within 6 
Month of 

appointment 

E-learning Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

Safeguarding  
Adults 

All Within 6 
Month of 

appointment 

TBC Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

H&S Training Cabinet Within 6 
Month of 

appointment 

Face to 
Face 

Reported to Group 
Leader/MSSG 

*CM = Committee Member 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



Appendix C – Current Optional Training Available to Members 

Optional Training Applicable to   Delivery Method 

Chairing Committee Skills All Face to Face 

Lake Admin Committee All Face to Face 

Risk Management All Face to Face 

Fraud All Face to Face 

Procurement All Face to Face 

Customer Connect Updates All Face to Face 

Emergency Planning All Face to Face 

Know your Ward  All Face to Face 

Homelessness All Face to Face 

Modern Slavery All Face to Face 

Skype All Face to Face 

SharePoint All Face to Face 

ModGov All Face to Face 

Word All Face to Face 

Excel All Face to Face 

Social Media and Web skills All Face to Face 

Mapping Tools Training All Face to Face 

Know Your Ward All  Face to Face 

LGA - The Effective Ward Councillor All E-Learning 

LGA - Supporting your Constituents All E-Learning 

LGA - Stress management and Personal 

Resilience All E-Learning 

LGA - Scrutiny for Councillors All E-Learning 

LGA - Police and Crime Panels All E-Learning 

LGA - Planning All E-Learning 

LGA - Licensing and Regulation All E-Learning 

LGA - Influencing Skills All E-Learning 

LGA - Handling Complaints for Service 

Improvement All E-Learning 

LGA - Facilitation and Conflict Resolution All E-Learning 

LGA - Councillor Induction All E-Learning 

LGA - Community Engagement and 

Leadership All E-Learning 

 

 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Appendix D 
 
Member Role Profiles 

 
Members are elected by the public to represent them both inside the Council and outside the 
Council in the community. They are accountable to their communities and their communities 
should be able to judge their performance.  
 
The following describes the role of a Member. It is reasonable to expect that, while a 
Member may specialise in certain aspects of the role and, indeed, this is something that 
should be encouraged, all Members will perform a broad spectrum of duties. A high 
performing Member would undertake the majority of, if not all, the duties listed below. 
 
Political Groups play a crucial role in the selection of candidates and in the organisation of 
Members.  Political Groups should monitor the performance of all their members. 
 
Purpose of the Role 
1. To participate constructively in the good governance of the District and the wider area 

and be the ultimate collective decision and policy-makers across a number of strategic 
and corporate management functions.   

 
2. To develop and maintain a working knowledge of the Council's services, management 

arrangements, powers/duties, and constraints 
 
3. To contribute actively to the formation and scrutiny of the Council's policies, budget, 

strategies and service delivery including any related strategic plans to support the future 
development of the Council and its services (e.g. Customer Connect). 

 
4. To represent effectively, as a community leader, the interests of the Member’s Ward and 

deal with constituents' enquiries and representations acting as a community advocate 
and champion causes for constituents, both within and outside the Council, with 
particular emphasis on those that will improve the quality of life of the community and 
enhance the digital and customer service agenda of the Council. 

 
5. To champion causes which best relate to the interests and sustainability of the 

community and campaign for improvement of the quality of life in the community in 
terms of equity, economy and the environment; deal with individual casework and act as 
an advocate for constituents including issues related to supporting the Localism agenda 
for the Council. 

 
6. To represent the Council on any outside bodies to which the Member may be appointed, 

promoting maintaining the highest standards of conduct and ethics; balance different 
interests identified within the ward and represent the ward as a whole.  

 
7. To engage in member development to enhance corporate and personal effectiveness, 

including attending and participating in any mandatory training courses, 'Away Days', 
workshops and other sessions either internally or externally provided, to enable you to 
fulfil the role of a Member, such training to include sessions in support of any 
developments within the Council. 

 
Key Tasks 
1. To fulfil statutory and any additional locally determined requirements of an elected 

Member of the Council and the Council itself, developing and maintaining effective 
professional working relations with relevant officers of the Council, in accordance with 

Page 61



the Code of Conduct and Council Protocols, and participation in those decisions and 
activities reserved for the full Council – e.g., setting budgets. 

 
2. To attend and participate effectively as a member of any committee or other body to 

which the Member is appointed including attendance at any related member 
development sessions for the work of the committee: 

a. Appeals Sub-Committee for which selected; 
b. Chair any ad-hoc Committees, Panels or Boards, where appointed; 
c. Attend and participate in any Planning site visits, tender opening or other 

statutory or non-statutory visits or tasks, as required. 
 
3. To participate in the activities of any outside body to which the Member is appointed, 

providing two-way communication between the organisations and presenting annually a 
report on the work of the body and its contribution to the District and the wider area. To 
develop and maintain a working knowledge of the Council's policies and practices in 
relation to that body and the community's needs, aspirations and functions. 

 
4. To participate, as appointed, in the area and service based consultative processes with 

the community and other organisations; contribute constructively to open government 
and democratic renewal through actively encouraging the community to participate in 
the government of the area; and, to this end, seek to involve the community in decisions 
that affect them by ensuring they have full information and then by helping them make 
their views known. 

 
5. To work collaboratively with other members within the ward to represent the community 

to the Council and vice-versa through all appropriate means representing the interests 
of your Ward, dealing with constituents' inquiries and representations. and hold Ward 
surgeries on a regular basis, where appropriate. You should be visible in and 
recognisable to your community; seek out membership or involvement in community 
based initiatives/groups in own Ward, and where necessary, provide guidance and 
leadership. 

 
6. To promote community cohesion and equality and diversity in decision making. 

 
7. To attend any mandatory Member training and endeavour to attend optional training 

offered to enhance and support the role of a Member. 
 

8. To adhere to the Member and Officer Protocol at all times and to uphold the seven 
principles of public life. 
 

9. To support the Council and the Member Support Steering Group in its work and, 
particularly, in its objective for SLDC Members to become ‘21st Century Councillors’ and 
to achieve North West Employers Member Charters. 

 
10. To ensure corporate responsibility for issues relating to the safeguarding of children and 

vulnerable adults, as well as personal responsibility to comply with all relevant 
safeguarding legislation, policies and action plans. 

  

Page 62



Leader of the Council - Role profile 
 
Purpose of the Role 
1. To provide visible leadership in relation to citizens, stakeholders and partners in the 

overall co-ordination of Council policies, strategies and service delivery. 
 

2. To contribute actively to the formulation and scrutiny of the Council's policies, budget, 
strategies and service delivery, including the digital and customer service developments. 

 
3. To lead or contribute towards the development of local, regional, national and international 

policy and strategic partnerships. 
 
Key Tasks 

1. In accordance with the Code of Conduct, Leader and Chief Executive Protocol and 
other Council Protocols, to provide visible leadership within the Council and to the 
South Lakeland community, stakeholders and partners in the overall co-ordination and 
promotion of Council policies, strategies and service delivery and any related strategic 
plans to support the future development of the Council and it’s services (e.g. Customer 
Connect). 

 

2. To lead and chair the Cabinet and be responsible for the preparation and proposal of 
the Budget and Policy Framework to the Council and to take responsibility individually 
and/or collectively for any specific portfolio, as well as acting as spokesperson for the 
Council.  In the event that the Leader is not available to chair a Cabinet meeting, to 
arrange for the Chair to be taken by the Deputy Leader. 

 

3. To represent the Council in the community and on strategic and regional partnerships 
and in discussions and negotiations with regional, national and international 
organisations and others, in relation to the pursuit of matters relevant to the district and 
Council functions and its community, including issues related to supporting the 
Localism agenda for the Council. 

 

4. To take the overall lead for the development, monitoring and review of the Council 
Plan or delegate as appropriate to the Deputy Leader.  To promote the vision, values 
and strategic objectives of the Council as set out in the Council Plan and other 
strategic plans and to champion them both within and outside the Council 

 

5. To appoint a Deputy Leader and Members of the Cabinet, to allocate portfolio areas of 
responsibility and to appoint appropriate Members to outside bodies as required. 

 

6. To manage the effectiveness of the Cabinet and its members and oversee delivery by 
them of their respective responsibilities and provide the support required to achieve 
their designated duties and responsibilities. 

 

7. In the absence of a Cabinet Member, due to sickness, holiday or other extended 
periods, to undertake their duties and responsibilities, or to sub-delegate these to 
another Cabinet Member for a period as so defined. 

 

8. To keep under review the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements including 
attendance at the Overview & Scrutiny Committee on matters relating to the Leader’s 
portfolio.  

 

Page 63



9. To ensure the Council’s image is promoted to best advantage by maintaining and 
developing effective professional working relationships and establish mutual respect 
with all Members and officers.   

 

10. To be, via the Council’s communications team, the primary contact for the media on 
matters relating to the Executive of the Council. 

 

11. To communicate vision and policy direction to the Chief Executive, and to meet 
regularly (with or without Cabinet) with the Chief Executive, Directors, and other 
relevant senior officers to consider and recommend action within approved policies 
and strategies.   

 

12. To ensure arrangements are in place to appraise the performance of the Chief 
Executive. 

 

13. To assist in the preparation of responses to Government etc., consultation documents. 
 

14. Actively engage in all mandatory training as agreed appropriate for the post and 
endeavour to attend all optional training offered to enhance and support the role of a 
Member. 
 

15. To undertake the Performance Development Plan review of each Member within 
his/her Group if requested to do so. 
 

16. To reinforce the need for all Group Members to attend mandatory training. 
 

17. To lead by example with regards to the Code of Conduct demonstrating to Members 
within his/her group of the need to ensure good governance so as to best protect the 
reputation of the Council and limit any exposure to risk. 
 

18. To support the Member Support Services Group in its objective for SLDC Members to 
become ‘21st Century Councillors’ and to achieve North West Employers Member 
Charters. 
 

19. To promote community cohesion and equality and diversity in matters relating to the 
portfolio. 

 

20. To ensure corporate responsibility for issues relating to the safeguarding of children and 
vulnerable adults, as well as personal responsibility to comply with all relevant 
safeguarding legislation, policies and action plans. 

 
  

Page 64



Deputy Leader of the Council - Role Profile 
 
Purpose of the Role 

1. To support the Leader of the Council and deputise in his / her absence 
 

Key Tasks 

1. In accordance with the Code of Conduct, Officer and Member Protocol and other 
Council Protocols, to assist the Leader in the formal processes and matters of 
leadership of the Council. These will include developing overall strategy, budgets, policy 
arrangements and service reviews, and representing the Council in the community and 
in discussions with regional, national and international organisations. 

 

2. To promote the vision, values and strategic objectives of the Council as set out in the 
Council Plan and any related strategic plans to support the future development of the 
Council and its services (e.g. Customer Connect) and to champion them both within and 
outside the Council including issues related to supporting the Localism agenda for the 
Council. 

 

3. To chair meetings of the Cabinet in the Leader’s absence and to act as Deputy for the 
Leader as required. 

 

4. To initiate and encourage public consultation on, and effective communication of, 
policies and strategies relevant to the portfolio. 

 

5. To be responsible for the discharge of functions within a designated portfolio as 
delegated by the Leader and to be accountable to the Council on matters of significance 
relevant to the portfolio through clear reporting mechanisms. 

 

6. To be collectively responsible with other Cabinet Members for the discharge of all 
Cabinet functions, as described in the Constitution. 

 

7. To be, via the Council's communications team, the primary contact for the media on 
matters relating to the portfolio.  

 

8. To work in partnership with, and represent the Council on external organisations and to 
report to the Council on the progress of the partnership(s) as necessary.  

 

9. To work with other portfolio holders, other members of the Council and Managers as 
appropriate.  

 

10. To assist in the preparation of responses to Government etc., consultation documents.  
 

11. To attend O & S Committees on matters relating to a portfolio holder’s area of 
responsibility and assist in any reviews related to the portfolio.  
 

12. Actively engage in all mandatory training as agreed appropriate for the post and 
endeavour to attend all optional training offered to enhance and support the role of a 
Member. 

 

13. To undertake the Performance Development Plan review of each Member within 
his/her Group if requested to do so by the Leader or specific Member. 

 

14. To reinforce the need for all Group Members to attend mandatory training. 
 

Page 65



15. To lead by example with regards to the Code of Conduct demonstrating to Members 
within his/her group of the need to ensure good governance so as to best protect the 
reputation of the Council and limit any exposure to risk. 

 

16. To support the Member Support Services Group in its objective for SLDC Members 
to become ‘21st Century Councillors’ and to achieve North West Employers Member 
Charters. 

 

17. To promote community cohesion and equality and diversity in matters relating to the 
portfolio. 

 

18. To ensure corporate responsibility for issues relating to the safeguarding of children and 
vulnerable adults, as well as personal responsibility to comply with all relevant 
safeguarding legislation, policies and action plans. 

  

Page 66



Cabinet Member - Role Profile 
 
Purpose of the Role 
1. To take responsibility within the Cabinet on the basis of individual and/or collective 

responsibility for a portfolio of services or functions of the Council as directed by the 
Leader. 

 
2. To contribute actively through the portfolio and membership of the Cabinet to the 

formulation and scrutiny of the Council's policies, budget, strategies and service 
delivery. 

 
Key Tasks 

1. In accordance with the Code of Conduct, Officer and Member Protocol and other 
Council Protocols, to participate in the Cabinet and to implement agreed policies by 
taking responsibility individually and/or collectively for any portfolio allocated by the 
Leader of the Council, including providing a lead on and proposing new policy, strategy, 
budget and service standards, and any related strategic plans to support the future 
development of the Council and it’s services (e.g. Customer Connect). 

 

2. To promote the vision, values and strategic objectives of the Council as set out in the 
Council Plan and represent the Council in the Community including issues related to 
supporting the Localism agenda for the Council. 

 

3. To initiate and encourage public consultation on, and effective communication of, 
policies and strategies relevant to the portfolio consulting and communicating with 
members of all political groups, council officers and key partners as appropriate to 
ensure decisions are well informed and that Council policies are widely understood and 
positively promoted. 

 

4. To be responsible and accountable to the Leader and the Cabinet for the discharge of 
functions within a designated portfolio, as delegated by the Leader, having a clear 
understanding and an in-depth knowledge of the respective portfolio, the scope and 
range of the relevant services for which he/she is responsible and an awareness of 
current agreed policies in respect of those services. 

 

5. To be collectively responsible with other Cabinet Members for the discharge of all 
Cabinet functions, as described in the Constitution. 

 

6. To be, via the Council's communications team, the primary contact for the media on 
matters relating to the portfolio. 

 

7. To work in partnership with, and represent the Council on external organisations and to 
report to the Council on the progress of the partnership(s) as necessary. 

 

8. To be accountable to the Council on matters of significance relevant to the portfolio 
through clear reporting mechanisms. 

 

9. To promote the development of new policies consistent with the strategic approach of 
the Council, and to champion them both within and outside the Council. 

 

10. To work with other portfolio holders, other members of the Council and Managers as 
appropriate. 

 

11. To assist in the preparation of responses to Government etc., consultation documents. 

Page 67



 

12. To attend O & S Committees on matters relating to a portfolio holder’s area of 
responsibility and assist in any reviews related to the portfolio. 
 

13. Actively engage in all mandatory training as agreed appropriate for the post and 
endeavour to attend all optional training offered to enhance and support the role of a 
Member. 
 

14. To reinforce the need for all Group Members to attend mandatory training. 
 

15. To lead by example with regards to the Code of Conduct demonstrating to Members 
within his/her group of the need to ensure good governance so as to best protect the 
reputation of the Council and limit any exposure to risk. 
 

16. To support the Member Support Services Group in its objective for SLDC Members to 
become ‘21st Century Councillors’ and to achieve North West Employers Member 
Charters. 

 

17. To promote community cohesion and equality and diversity in matters relating to the 
portfolio. 

 

18. To ensure corporate responsibility for issues relating to the safeguarding of children and 
vulnerable adults, as well as personal responsibility to comply with all relevant 
safeguarding legislation, policies and action plans. 

 

19. Together with other Cabinet Members: 

 To support the Cabinet Leader in the preparation of the Council’s Budget and 
Policy Framework. 

 To be responsible for in-year decisions on resources and priorities, after 
appropriate consultation, to deliver and implement the budget and policies 
approved by full Council.  

 To provide the focus for forming partnerships with other local public, private, 
voluntary and community sector organisations to address local needs. 

 To lead on the development of overall, service related strategies and plans 
within the agreed annual budget allocation. 

 To lead on the achievement of the strategic objectives of the services within a 
designated portfolio, in accordance with Council priorities. 

 To represent the various services within a designated portfolio, both within and 
outside the Council as necessary, to enable the Council to deliver its objectives 
within corporate standards. 

 To take responsibility, as sub-delegated by the Cabinet Leader, for the functions 
within a portfolio of another Cabinet Member, for periods of holiday, sickness or 
other extended periods. 

 
 

  

Page 68



Chair of the Council Role Profile 
 
Introduction 
The Chair of Council and in their absence, the Vice Chair, is the civic leader and first citizen 
of the community. 
 
The Chair of the Council is elected each year at the annual Council meeting.  He or she 
chairs full Council meetings and represents the council at civic functions in the South 
Lakeland area and in neighbouring areas.  He or she also attends local informal events at 
which the Council is asked to be present.  The Chair should not be confused with the Leader 
or Deputy Leader of the Council who provide political leadership for the Council. 
 
The Chair must be a serving district councillor.  He or she must remain politically impartial 
and must not be a member of the cabinet. 
 
Ceremonial duties 
The Chair’s ceremonial duties require that he or she must: 
 
1. Be politically impartial and uphold the democratic values of the Council 
2. Support the objectives and services of the district council 
3. Represent the Council at civic and ceremonial events, acting on behalf of and supported 

by the whole Council in a non-partisan manner 
4. Act as an ambassador for the council 
5. Act as the principal spokesperson of the Council on civic and ceremonial occasions 
6. Provide community leadership and promote active citizenship, fostering community 

identify and pride and promoting public involvement in the Council’s activities 
7. Invite individuals and representatives of key organisations to suitable events 
 
Key responsibilities 
The chair’s key responsibilities require that he or she must: 
 
1. Preside over Full Council meetings, acting impartially and ensuring that business is 

carried out efficiently and effectively whilst protecting the rights of individual members 
and the interests of the community 

2. Uphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution and interpret the Constitution when 
necessary, working with officers to keep the Constitution under review to ensure it is 
relevant to the Council’s needs 

3. Promote public involvement in the Council’s activities and ensure that at Council 
meetings, matters of concern to local communities can be debated by their District 
Council members 

4. Promote and support good governance of the Council and its affairs. 
 
The Vice Chair acts on the Chair’s behalf when the Chair is unavailable.  

Page 69



Chair of Committee – Role Profile 
Purpose of the Role 
1. To effectively chair meetings as appointed by the council at the Annual General Meeting 

of South Lakeland District Council, including any working groups or external meetings 
for which the council are proactive partners. 

 
Key Tasks 
1. Leading the committee to enable it to fulfil its purpose, ensuring the Constitution and the 

rules of debate are followed effectively. 
 
2. To ensure an effective relationship between the committee, officers and members of the 

public / press who may attend for Part 1 items  
 
3. Chair committee meetings ensuring: 

 A balance is struck between time-keeping and space for discussions to ensure 
matters are dealt with in an orderly, efficient manner 

 Business is dealt with impartially and objectively within the meeting and decision-
making is fair, balanced and transparent (save for items considered to be 
confidential in accordance with legislation) 

 Decisions, actions and deliberations are accurately minuted. 

 The implementation of decisions is clearly assigned and monitored. 
 

4. Demonstrate the following qualities and skills when acting in this capacity: 

 The ability to facilitate focussed and relevant discussions, ensuring that all 
committee members are able to contribute and that no members are able to unduly 
dominate discussions at the expense of others 

 Good communication and interpersonal skills. 

 Impartiality, fairness, tact and diplomacy. 

 Ability to ensure decisions are taken and followed-up. 

 Possesses relevant knowledge of committee protocol and the Council Constitution.  

 Has the relevant skills to run a meeting well including effective time keeping. 

 A willingness to devote the necessary time and effort. 
 

5. The Chair will communicate with the officers in the relevant department to discuss 
relevant matters which have come up in between meetings including holding a chair's 
briefing to allow for a discussion with the officers to raise any matters/concerns before 
the meeting begins, to allow the chair to be aware of any difficulties with an item on the 
agenda, and can try to push discussion along or point members in the right direction to 
come to a decision. 
 

6. A chair must attend all relevant training including all mandatory training to ensure 
sufficient knowledge of the subject area for which they are chair in order to effectively run 
the committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



 
Vice chair of Committee - Role Profile 

Purpose of the Role 
1. In addition to deputising for the chairs in the event of absence, they might be called on to 

undertake specific pieces of work on behalf of the committee or the organisation as a 
whole. 

 
Key Tasks 
1. Fulfil all the functions of the committee chair in the absence of the chair; 
 
2. Advise, support and act as a ‘critical friend’ to the committee chair; 
  
3. Act as an active member of the committee;  
 
4. Undertake individual pieces of work on behalf of the committee and the organisation as 

a whole (e.g. representing at events and meetings, taking part in ad-hoc working groups 
and taking forward specific tasks). 
 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



P a g e  | 1 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

Appendix E 
South Lakeland District Council 

 
Member Support Strategy 

2017 - 2020 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
  

Page 73



P a g e  | 2 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

 Contents  
 

Paragraph 
  

Page 
   
   
   

1.0 Introduction 3 
 

2.0 Aim of Member Support Strategy  4 
 

3.0 Key Drivers for Strategic Direction 5 
 

4.0 Identification and Prioritisation of Development Needs 5 
 

5.0 Member Development Programme 7 
 

6.0 How training is delivered 7 
 

7.0 Evaluation 8 
 

8.0 Resources and other Support 8 
 

9.0 Actions for the Future 9 
 

Appendix A Member Development Action Plan 12 
 
 

   
   
   

Page 74



P a g e  | 3 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Purpose 

This Strategy is to set out how the Council will provide continued support for its elected 
Members, especially during the transition of Council Services within the Customer Connect 
programme. It has been developed by the Council’s cross party Member Support Steering 
Group, chaired by the Deputy Leader and Council Organisation and People Portfolio Holder, 
Councillor Sue Sanderson. This Strategy is subject to annual review following discussions at 
Member Support Steering Group to ensure relevance and alignment to Council Plan 
priorities. 

1.2 Role of Member Support Steering Group   

The Group’s main objectives are to oversee the roll-out of the Member Development 
Programme and to champion the mechanisms needed to support elected Members in 
achieving their aspirations and aiding the Council in attaining its corporate objectives and the 
implementation of the Customer Connect programme. 

1.3 Corporate Commitment  

The Council, as stated in the Council Plan 2019, recognises that an important method of 
delivering its priorities is through community leaders:  “Our elected Members act as 
community leaders and are advocates for local people. We will ensure they are given the 
training they need to effectively represent their residents and support their communities to 
become more sustainable”.  

In October 2014 Cabinet approved a Customer Contact Strategy which defined the guiding 
principles currently shaping the way the Council interacts with customers over the next three 
years.  The ’people’ element of the project will work in parallel to the digital rollout. It will be 
important to understand the skills and competencies needed by Members for the future.  The 
Customer Connect Programme has three main elements: 

• Digital (Technology and the Council works) 
• People (Members and Employees) 
• Place (Where and how the Council undertakes business) 

1.4 Moving Forward – 21st Century Councillor 

Research undertaken in 2016 by the University of Birmingham around the ideas of what the 
21st Century Council and Councillor may look like has informed the work being undertaken in 
member development within the Council.   

Its focus was on identifying the need to pay attention to the changing roles undertaken by 
Members and Councils in ensuring the work of the council going forward is within the context 
of new ways of working and empowering communities, changing customer demand within a 
digital ways of working.  The research may be found at http://21stcenturypublicservant.wordpress.com 
 

 

Page 75



P a g e  | 4 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

1.5 Member Commitment   

Analysis has been undertaken to explore different ways of engaging including the timing and 
accessibility of training and development activities and the findings of this research has 
informed the updated training and development programme, alongside the requirements to 
embed the Customer Connect programme, based on the 21st Century Councillor Research.   

We have an opportunity to develop our Councillors for the 21st Century and to equip them 
with the skills to engage in different ways, including digitally. i.e.-   

• To have a Personal Development Plan (PDP) to help achieve their own goals and 
ambitions; 

• To be receptive to the opportunities available, with particular regard to digital 
innovations and different ways of engaging in Council business (paperless 
committees, community engagement within the Customer Connect project and new 
ways of working such as the MyAccount and changes to the Ward boundaries;  

• To complete and return on request a course evaluation form after all training and 
development activity undertaken;  

• To  attend all mandatory training and development activities arranged and make 
every endeavour to attend optional training;  

• To consider what peer training they could provide to their colleagues; 

• To respond in a timely fashion to any request for information from Member 
Services;). 

 

1.6 Skills Development 

The Council is, therefore, committed to providing opportunities for all Councillors to develop 
appropriate levels of skills, knowledge and expertise to enable them to fulfil their community 
leadership roles.  These skills include: 

• engaging with communities; 
• promoting the duty of local authorities to involve the public; 
• being aware of and considering budgetary issues and statutory duties of the Council; 
• undertaking service reviews and ways of working under Customer Connect; 
• promoting and participating in partnership working; and 
• engaging in strategic leadership 

 
2.0 Aim of the Member Support Strategy 

2.1 The Member Support Strategy  

The Member Support Strategy sets out a long term view of how the Council can meet this 
commitment by providing a framework for future Member training and development.   The 
People project of Customer Connect has identified the need to include the following in 
support of Member development:  

Page 76



P a g e  | 5 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

• Improved customer services, customer engagement and communication skills; 
improved customer service will be a benefit driven out predominately by self-serve 
and case management.  This will help Members develop how they can support their 
communities in more agile and digital ways, as well as face to face engagements.   

• Members upskilled in IT and digital ways of working; 
• Mobile working utilised to provide more flexible and agile working for Members 

especially given the changes in boundaries;  
• Understanding of the need to be a proactive Council with a strong employer brand; 
• Refreshed Member Development Strategy; 
• Achieving aims of Active Travel Plan to reduce car travel, encourage the use of video 

conferencing / skype for business options for meeting engagement; 
• Increased value for money services and return on investment opportunities 

 

The aim is to have:  

• Motivated and skilled Councillors;  
• A consistent approach to Member training and development;  
• Equality of opportunity; 
• Well-equipped Members who are confident and able to carry out their roles 

effectively; and 
• Raise awareness amongst Members of their own responsibilities for their own 

personal development.  
 

3.0 Key Drivers for Strategic Direction  

3.1 As well as being committed to providing development opportunities for Members, 
other key drivers for the strategic direction for Member support were a combination of 
changes in legislation, such as the Localism Act 2011 with its emphasis on community 
empowerment and citizen led development, as well as our corporate aspirations, as set out 
in the Council Plan 2019.  

3.2 The Member Support Steering Group has recognised that, in order for community 
empowerment to be effective, the role of Councillors will change to be more supportive of 
communities learning to take control of issues themselves.  CC will deliver opportunities for 
localitymobile working so employees can work directly with the ward members, partners and 
communities on a particular issue to resolve it. 

3.3 The Member Development Programme includes development initiatives to support 
Councillors with their changing roles within communities. The Programme also includes 
opportunities for shared training events for Cabinet members, Corporate Management Team 
and the new Leadership Team. This is aimed at enabling them to grow together in their 
understanding and development of strategic issues. 

 

 

Page 77



P a g e  | 6 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

4.0 Identification and Prioritisation of Development Needs 

4.1 The rationale for deciding what development and/or support should be provided, is 
based on information gathered from a number of different sources. These include – 

• Members themselves (through their PDPs); 
• Corporate needs (from the Council Plan and key projects such as Customer 

Connect); 
• Development needs as a result of changes in legislation or policy; 
• Benchmarking information from other authorities; and 
• Information provided by the North West Employers and the Local Government 

Association 
  

4.2 Personal Development Plans 

These are offered to all Members and are compulsory for new Members to the Council, as 
well as those who play leading roles e.g. Cabinet Members and Chairmen.  

4.2.1 As part of the PDP process, each Member can select up to three priority 
development areas which they feel they would like to see addressed in the next 12 
months (i.e. their Individual Training Plan) and clearly identify how this development 
will impact on ability to undertake duties as a Councillor. They can also consider how 
and when these needs can best be met. 

4.2.2 Each Member is expected to attend at least one PDP review meeting during 
their four year term of office. The PDP must be reviewed on an annual basis with 
their party Leader or Deputy Leader or the Senior Organisational Development 
Officer (either through a face to face or telephone interview) and, in some cases, with 
the Member’s agreement, at shorter time scales. At each review, the Member’s 
Individual Training Plan is examined to see if their needs have been met and a 
further Plan, including up to three development areas, is agreed for the next period. 

4.3 Customer Connect priorities  

When considering the impact of the Customer Connect programme on the role of Members 
and the opportunities for development within the new ways of working for the Council, as 
expressed in the Customer Connect Vision “to improve the lives of our residents by 
delivering the services and support they need in a way which suits them and provides best 
value for money for taxpayers” we need to recognise the impact that Customer Connect will 
have on the role of Members going forward.  Using the 21st Century Councillor Research as 
a guide, the following are noted as key areas for development: 
 
The main themes within the Customer Connect People Project for Members relates to six 
key areas: 

1. What it means to be a Member is changing 
2. Member roles are developed to incorporate the new Wards / FER and engaging 

communities and with data 
3. Members and Officers 
4. Member profiles 
5. Developing skills for the 21st Century Member 

Page 78



P a g e  | 7 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

 
Appendix A refers to the details and timelines in relation to this work 
 
 
4.4 Legislation/ Policy 

Changes to legislation/policy often require Members to develop new areas of expertise and 
understanding. As examples, the Localism Act 2011 included provision for changes to 
Planning laws, Housing policy, constitutional changes and introducing a general power of 
competency for local authorities whilst the Homelessness Reduction Act 2018 introduced 
new ways of assessing whether or not a person is in housing need. 

5.0 Member Development Programme 

5.1 The Member Development Programme is drawn up from this resultant list of 
identified training needs and priorities for training, which fall into the following categories– 

5.1.1 Mandatory training 

This training is considered essential for Members because it is either role-specific (i.e. 
training for members of committees when/ if dealing with quasi-judicial issues), relates to 
the Council’s statutory duties for which it must be able to demonstrate due diligence 
(such as Data Protection training) or provides key information that is essential for a 
Member to be effective in their general role (such as Code of Conduct training). 

• Code of Conduct 
• Constitution 
• Planning Committee 
• Licensing Committee 
• Chairing Skills 
• Standards Committee 
• Audit Committee 
• Human Resources Committee 

• Induction 
• Overview and Scrutiny 
• Data Protection 
• Prevent 
• Safeguarding 

 
 

5.1.3 Optional training (such as topic specific issues and issues identified by 
individual Members)  

• Community Leadership/ engagement 
• Boundary changes– impact on ways of working and use of technology 
• Information Technology upskilling / effective use of equipment and software 

(Modgov; Skype etc.) 

Page 79



P a g e  | 8 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

• Leadership development for Cabinet members or potential members for the 
future 

• Media skills 
• Risk Management 
• Conferences (as and when and dependent on budget and link to supporting PDP) 

 
5.2 Once the Programme has been drafted, it is costed against the available budget. The 
roll-out of the Programme is monitored regularly throughout the year by the Member Support 
Steering Group. 

6.0 How training is delivered 

6.1 In recent months, officers have worked hard to expand the e-learning offering 
available to Members.  This aligns with the Council’s commitment to make it easier for 
Members to access training without the need to visit South Lakeland House each time and 
also reinforces the Council’s commitment to reducing its carbon footprint.  Members are 
encouraged to view the training offered via the Member Support pages on Sharepoint.  
Training is delivered in a variety of forms, not just e-learning. Examples include: 

• Face to face training and briefing sessions; 
• E-learning and on-line opportunities; 
• a library of resources is available to Members in the Members’ Room; 
• CDs are also available including Chairing Meetings, Managing stress and Scrutiny 

activities;  
• Members are also able to tap into various resources available on the North West 

Employers’ website and from the Local Government Association. 
 

7.0 Evaluation 

7.1 Evaluation of our training and development programme is important as it enables an 
assessment to be made of the effectiveness of the training provided so we can ensure we 
are receiving value for money and the quality of training provision remains high. 

7.2 Details of all training and development courses, including evaluation feedback, are 
reported to the Member Support Steering Group for discussion on a quarterly basis.   
Feedback and evaluation analysis is also placed on the Member Services SharePoint site for 
Members to review. 

7.3 The feedback and evaluation procedure helps to assess the effectiveness or 
otherwise of training, using feedback forms which focus on intended key training outcomes. 
Any unsatisfactory learning is reviewed and changed to ensure that it does deliver to the 
required quality standard in the future. 

8.0 Resources and other Support 

8.1 Budget  

A small budget is available for Member training and development; this covers training events 
and conferences, including travel and accommodation costs.  

Page 80



P a g e  | 9 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

8.2 Contact Centre Query logging - Support is available for Members with reporting 
and following up queries and complaints from constituents about Council services. The 
Contact Centre has a facility which enables Member queries to be logged, given a unique 
reference number and tracked until resolved. This facility will be updated to take into account 
the rolled out Customer Connect priorities including the My Account initiative. 

8.3 Digital Technology – the provision of IT equipment for Members is part of the wider 
digitalisation agenda for the council under Customer Connect.  All Members can choose 
from one of the following:- 

• Laptops - This enables Members Cabinet to work securely, both in the home, 
office or at remote locations. 

• Tablets; 
• Mobile phones. 

 
 

8.3.2 The Steering Group will monitor and review the impact of these arrangements to 
ensure that Members’ ICT needs and training requirements are addressed appropriately, 
particularly in the light of new technology developments within the Customer Connect 
project. 

8.4 Accommodation/facilities - Members have the use of a secure Members’ Room 
where they can work or relax between meetings. Members’ pigeon holes (for post) are 
located in the room, as well as information and training materials, recycling facilities and an 
internal telephone. 

8.4.1 Use of Members’ accommodation is reviewed regularly to ensure that the facilities 
available meet the needs of our Members. 

8.4.2 The Leader has an office within the Corporate Management suite of offices on the 
top floor of South Lakeland House and there is also an adjacent office available for use by 
other Cabinet Members as and when necessary. 

8.4.3 The Chairman has use of a room adjacent to the District Council Chamber. This is 
used for officer meetings when not in use by the Chairman. 

8.5 Staffing Resources -The HR Lead Specialist has overall responsibility for all 
employee, Member and Apprentice development and the Council’s learning and 
development strategy. The HR Lead Specialist, fulfilled through the role of OD Specialist and 
in partnership with Lead Legal, Governance and Democratic Specialist and Case 
Management will work collaboratively to ascertain and create a Member development 
programme annually in line with the agreed member development strategy, the action plan 
and its delivery. 

On a day to day basis, Member support is dealt with by the Case Managers who have 
responsibility for legal, governance and democracy.  The Case Managers provide 
administrative support for this function, assist with dealing with Members’ queries and 
provide assistance to the Chairman of the Council, mainly with responding to invitations to 
engagements, as well as arranging functions. The Lead Specialist for Legal Governance and 

Page 81



P a g e  | 10 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

Democracy will support members on matters relating to Governance, decision making, code 
of conduct and being an effective member. 

8.5.1    The Leader is supported by an officer within the Case Management team. Support 
mainly consists of diary management, arranging meetings and travel, and some typing/ filing. 

9.0 Actions for the Future 

9.1 There are a number of issues which will need to be addressed, or continued to be 
supported, to ensure the continuous improvement of the support service offered to 
Members. These include - 

9.2 Succession Planning - This is necessary to ensure that the Council always has 
Members with appropriate skills and knowledge who are able to change their role or to take 
on a more demanding one if necessary.  

9.2.1 This is actively supported through the attendance of appropriate Councillors on 
leadership development programmes such as the Leadership Academy. Due to the cost of 
this development programme and the limited budget available, a maximum of two 
Councillors will be sponsored each year.  

9.2.2 The current selection method is to canvass for interest amongst Members, and, if 
there are more than two, for the Member Support Steering Group to determine which 
Councillors will attend. 

9.2.3 The Corporate Senior Management Team are to discuss potential nominees of the 
leadership Academy training with the Group Leaders prior to confirmation of nominees and 
arrangements for the training to take place.  

9.3 Ad-hoc Training Requests made during the year   

9.3.1 Although training is largely delivered in accordance with the agreed Member 
Development Programme, there are occasions when training opportunities come to light 
which Members feel would enhance their knowledge and understanding. As the 
Development Programme expends the full budget available during the course of the year, 
there is no leeway available to add training identified throughout the year. 

9.3.2 However, the value of such training is recognised by the Steering Group and it has 
agreed that such training requests will be considered against the learning and development 
needs contained within a Member’s PDP and should demonstrate an element of “added 
value” to the Council. 

9.4 Continuation of Shared Learning Opportunities  

9.4.1 Partners/ Other organisations - Sharing the provision of skills and training is often 
beneficial both in terms of good practice and cost. Examples have been Code of Conduct 
training and the Information Hub as well as the Member Development Network hosted by 
North West Employers. 

9.4.2 The Council will continue to investigate sharing possibilities with neighbouring local 
authorities and external partners. Parish/Town Councillors and partner organisations will be 

Page 82



P a g e  | 11 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

invited to attend development sessions with District Councillors where appropriate to offer 
community support as well as ensure consistency and understanding.  A programme related 
to the My Account will be developed for implementation at an appropriate time. 

9.4.3 Officer/ Member Training - Joint training sessions for both has proved beneficial e.g. 
IT training.    

9.4.4 Peer Training - It is also appreciated that elected Members often have a wealth of 
knowledge and expertise from a wide range of work related and social roles. Peer to peer 
training takes a different approach than that utilised by professional tutors but can be highly 
effective e.g. participation in Induction training sessions. Members will be encouraged to 
share their expertise with their colleagues in a way which promotes greater understanding of 
the role each of them will perform.  

9.5 Mentoring - Each group has responsibility for offering a Member Mentor to each new 
Member to help them settle in to their new environment as quickly and easily as possible. 

9.6  Induction - The induction process is continually reviewed to ensure that Members 
are being offered training which meets their needs without over-burdening them. This has 
resulted in a dedicated Induction Programme for newly elected Councillors taking a blended 
approach to delivery (on-line information, face to face sessions and an information booklet 
as well as SharePoint pages with information for all members to access at any time). 

9.7 Digital Technology and Access - The implementation of the new arrangements in 
relation to Customer Connect needs to be monitored and reviewed for effectiveness.  

9.8 Feedback on Training Attended - It is not always possible for every Member to 
attend specific training, seminars or conferences. Time restrictions, family commitments and 
cost prohibit this but this does not mean that those unable to attend should not glean some 
benefit from it.  

9.8.1 Presentations of all training and notes from seminars and conferences, where 
possible, will be made available to Members upon request. Those attending the training, 
seminars or conferences should be willing to take notes and provide a copy of the 
presentation for it to be shared in this way.  

10.0 Action Plan 

10.1 Attached to this Strategy is an Action Plan which details our objectives, the target 
date for achieving them, as well as how we will know that we have been successful. 

10.2 The Action Plan will be monitored and progressed against targets reported on a 
regular basis to the Member Support Steering Group. 

   
 
 
 

Page 83



P a g e  | 12 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

Appendix A  
 

Customer Connect People PID Action Plan 
Core Theme Sub-theme Lead Milestone  Outcome Timescale 

What it 
means to be 
a Member is 
changing 

IT equipment roll-out B Wright SLDC equipment available for all Members – Spring 
2018 
Use of County Council device being explored – 
Autumn 2019 
Bring your own device being explored – Autumn 2019 

All Members 
receive and are 
able to interact 
with digital 
technology and 
multi-platform 
methods of 
communication 
and engagement 
 
More Paperless 
meetings 
More flexible 
way of working, 
Skype, etc. 
Positive 
evaluation 
feedback; 
 

Tranche 2 
Completed by mid-
2018 following 
scoping of Member 
needs, procurement 
and equipment 

Becoming a digital 
Member 

C Brumwell MSSG – Digital Advocates – Ongoing including 
organising training and familiarisation with paperless 
councillor and use of technology and software.  Liaising 
with others to deliver and support 

Continue working with 
neighbouring authorities / 
partners to provides 
value for money training 
and development 
opportunities 

C Brumwell The number of occasions when training events have 
been shared and VFM 

IT training and system 
familiarisation 

B Wright Cabinet & MSSG – Spring 2017 
Members – Spring 2018 
Ongoing thereafter 

Mod Gov – usage / 
tables and notes 

J Habbershon 

Use and location of 
facilities and how place 
is used to facilitate digital 
and agile working  

S Thomas/ 
Case 
Management 

Places element of Customer Connect provides 
appropriate facilities to enable members to work to 
enable them to work in more agile digital ways 

Members are 
satisfied with 
facilities 
available  

Tranche 3 

P
age 84



P a g e  | 13 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

Core Theme Sub-theme Lead Milestone  Outcome Timescale 

Member 
roles are 
developed to 
incorporate 
the new 
Wards / FER 

Place Shaping  
Partnership working: 
Understand boundary 
changes and impact on 
ways Members will work 
with each other and 
across revised Ward 
system and support 
outcomes 

 
 P Mountford  

Information sessions to be arranged – Ongoing A different way 
of engaging 
Members with 
the enhanced 
offer from SLDC 
and engaging 
with more 
specific issues at 
a strategic level 
 
Information and  
development 
sessions to 
support new 
ways of working 

Tranche 2 
Completed by end 
2017 to prepare 
Members for 
changes to be 
implemented after 
District elections in 
2018 

Engaging 
communities 
and data 

Advocate – Representing 
in the new council 
services and able to 
operate in the new 
context including the use 
of the My Account 

 Using technology to engage Citizens and work on joint 
programmes to deliver the Council Plan priorities to 
communities 
My Account – Briefings to allow Members to view  
system and how to extract relevant data sets – prior to 
roll out of system 

Members have 
access to data in 
a digital format 
that they have 
confidence to 
use and access 
remotely and in 
real time 
 
Members 
understand the 
impact that new 
ways of working 
have on the 

All completed by 
Tranche 3 
Completed by end 
2019 to allow for 
implementation of 
digital project and 
service design and 
roll-out 

Data Governance P Mountford Intelligence around community engagements – 
Members are able to track case work – ongoing as 
digital work progresses 

Community Profiles / 
Boundary changes –  
implications 

P Mountford 
S Berry 

Data collation and extraction for FER and boundary 
changes and provide training on how Councillors may 
extract this data from the My account  
By end 2019 so Members understand the changed 
nature of 2 / 3 Member Wards 

P
age 85



P a g e  | 14 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

Core Theme Sub-theme Lead Milestone  Outcome Timescale 

Buffer & Sense Maker – 
relationship building with 
the community and 
SLDC 

S Blyth On-going engagement through LEP, LAP, CSP, 
neighbourhood and community funded initiatives and 
events in a more digital way including the access and 
use of data, community portals and allocation of grants 
/ funding 

services offered 
(working smarter 
not harder on the 
basics – freeing 
up time for the 
complex) Entrepreneur – Council 

Plan initiatives 
C Gould  
 P Mountford 

Councillors pro-active in engaging with SLDC 
supported Council Plan related themes and projects – 
Ongoing annually. 

Orchestrator – working 
with partners and new 
community voices 

S Blyth Community engagement project around equality, 
Mouthpiece etc. – On-going (in line with funding 
timescales).  Parish charter/member engagement 
understood – On-going 

Members 
and Officers 

Members – 
understanding their roles 
and the work of Officers 
and how this impacts on 
the services offered to 
residents 
 
 
 
Enhance corporate 
ownership of Member 
development and how 
this impacts on 
Member’s roles now and 
in the future (including 
succession planning for 
key roles of Cabinet etc.) 
 

C Brumwell 
Operational 
Leads and 
Lead 
Specialists 
(information 
provision on 
Website/Share
Point) 

Officer / Member Protocol – Refresh training May 2019 
following election (Ad-hoc training will be provided prior 
to this date if any new Members elected before this 
date – resignation etc.) 
Customer Connect briefings and engagements 
 
Member Support Steering Group to report on an annual 
basis to Council. 

Members 
understand the 
structures, 
responsibilities 
and reporting 
lines in such a 
way as endorses 
Customer 
Connect positive 
changes to 
service provision 

Rolling programme 
through Tranche 2 
and 3 
Completed by mid – 
2020 
 
 
 
 
Annually 

P
age 86



P a g e  | 15 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

Core Theme Sub-theme Lead Milestone  Outcome Timescale 

Member 
Profiles 

Members reflect the local 
community, including: 
Revised role descriptions 
for Leader, Deputy 
Leader, Cabinet and 
Members 
 
Explore the traits and 
skills of Members going 
beyond 2018 elections 
including: 
• Age diversity that 

reflects the 
community within the 
Member profile, if 
possible 

• Ability to use 
technology 

• Key skills and 
competencies 
identified and 
positively expresses 
to candidates and 
Members looking for 
re-election 

• Able to embrace new 
ways of working 
including paperless 
Councillor initiatives 
 

T Benson 
 
 

Provide candidates with information on the role of 
Member, new ways of working and digital fluency 
requirements (ability to use and engage positively with 
new technology) 
Pre-District Council elections 
 
Provide information to potential Members on new ways 
of working (digital, Paperless council) developed from 
work undertaken by POD – Ongoing 

Member 
Induction is 
developed to 
promote the 
Customer 
Connect project 
including use of 
the technology 
within 
Committees and 
other 
communications 

Pre-District Council 
elections 
 

P
age 87



P a g e  | 16 

 

Version:  0.3  Date: Updated April 2019 

Core Theme Sub-theme Lead Milestone  Outcome Timescale 

Developing 
skills for the 
21st Century 
Member 

Training and 
development offer which 
is: 
• Practical 
• Knowledge-based 
• Connective 
• Digital 
• Reflective 
Underpinned by a robust 
PDP process and North 
West Charter scrutiny 
arrangements (Level 1 
and 2)  

Personal Development 
Planning to ensure that 
the individual training 
requirements of our 
Members are identified 

Monitor applications for 
ad-hoc training requests 

Ensure that all training is 
robustly evaluated to 
ascertain that it is 
providing value for 
money and is 
appropriate 

Learning and 
Development 
Officers 

Member Support Strategy re-fresh by May 2019 for 
presentation to MSSG and People Working Group 
Member Support Training programme – annually 
MSSG meetings – quarterly   
North West Charter Level 1- achieved 
North West Charter Level 2 – Winter 2019 
PDP reviews – On-going throughout year 
 
Each newly elected Member, new Portfolio Holder and 
Member re-elected to be offered a Personal 
Development Planning Review 
 
Review how evaluation data is obtained and analysed 
to ensure it provides meaningful information 

Members have 
access to 
training in 
practical way (e-
learning, blended 
learning, face to 
face (evenings / 
briefings etc.) to 
enhance 
member 
engagement with 
training at times 
which suit the 
working pattern 
of Members  
 
The number of 
relevant PDP 
interviews 
completed each 
year and 75% of 
training needs 
identified through 
the PDP process 
being met 
 
Regular 
reporting on 
evaluation of 
training to MSSG 

Rolling programme 
through Tranche 2 
and 3 
 
Completed by mid - 
2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Within two months 
of the date of 
election and at least 
once in their term 
as a Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quarterly 

 

P
age 88



South Lakeland District Council 

Council  

Wednesday, 9 October 2019 

Review of Anti-Fraud Policies  

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151) 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151) 

Wards:  Corporate Issue 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report concludes the Audit Committee’s annual review of the Council’s Anti-
Fraud Policies by updating the policies to reflect changed in the Council’s 
organisational structure. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Council:- 

(1) approve the amendments to the Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption 
Policy as shown at Appendix 1; and 

(2) approve the amendments to the Anti-Money Laundering Policy as 
shown at Appendix 2.  

 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1  The Audit Committee Work Programme for 2019/20 includes an annual review of the 
Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy and the Anti-Money Laundering Policy.   

3.2 The Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy forms part of the Council’s Policy 
Framework. The policy was reviewed by Audit Committee in September 2019. The 
policy has been updated to reflect new job titles and roles arising from Phase 1 of 
Customer Connect.  Appendix 1 shows the proposed changes to this policy. 

3.3 Councils are obliged to adopt a risk-based approach towards anti-money laundering.  
The Anti-Money Laundering Policy was approved by Audit Committee in December 
2017 and has been updated for new job roles and titles.  Appendix 2 shows the 
proposed amended version of this policy. 

3.4 Audit Committee also received details of the Council’s compliance with the national 
Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption.  The Corporate 
Anti-Fraud Officer has prepared fraud and corruption risk assessment with 
Operational Managers and action plans for all Council services.  It was used to inform 
the production of the Counter Fraud Strategy with progress on the delivery of actions 
reported to Audit Committee.   

Page 89

Item No.8



4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Officers have reviewed best practice relating to anti-bribery, fraud and corruption.  
The proposed changes to the Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy and Anti-
Money Laundering Policy were approved by Audit Committee on 19 September 
2019. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 It is good practice to have an Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy.  No 
amendments are recommended. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 To embed a culture where bribery, fraud and corruption are not tolerated. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 This report has no direct financial implications.  Effective anti-fraud procedures 
minimise the likelihood of financial losses through fraud. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no direct human resources implications of this report. 

Legal 

7.3 There is a criminal offence of failing to prevent bribery under the Bribery Act 2010 
and if convicted an organisation can be liable to an unlimited fine. Therefore the 
review of this policy and compliance has an important role in minimising the risks to 
the Council arising from this legislation. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
review of the anti-fraud policies has no direct HSEE implications. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
review of the anti-fraud policy has no direct Equality and Diversity implications. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Failure to have an Anti-Fraud 
and Corruption Policy in place. 

There will be no high level 
direction to the way in 
which fraudulent or corrupt 
acts are reported, 
investigated or dealt with. 

 

Fraud and corruption will 
not be detected resulting 
in significant losses in 
council finances and bad 
publicity. 

A policy that clearly 
reflects the Council’s 
stance on fraud and 
corruption which acts as a 
deterrent to potential 
fraudsters. 

A policy that clearly 
defines responsibilities 
and the introduction of 
monitoring arrangements 
to highlight high risk areas. 

Page 90



Risk Consequence Controls required 

 

Lack of procedures to 
prevent bribery may lead 
to prosecution  

A policy that clearly 
defines bribery and 
defines responsibilities for 
ensuring ‘adequate 
procedures’ to prevent 
bribery. 

Failure to have effective Anti-
fraud monitoring in place 

Fraud and corruption will 
not be detected resulting 
in significant losses in 
Council finances and bad 
publicity 

A Policy that clearly 
identifies responsibilities 
and monitoring 
arrangements to highlight 
high risk areas. 

Contact Officers 

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist, 01539 793147, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy 

2 Anti-Money Laundering Policy  

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Fighting Fraud Locally: the 
local government fraud 
strategy 

http://tinyurl.com/mo55pnz 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 30/8/19 

Section 151 Officer 30/8/19 

Monitoring Officer 30/8/19 

CMT 30/8/19 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 91

http://tinyurl.com/mo55pnz


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92



Appendix 1 

South Lakeland District Council 
 

ANTI-BRIBERY FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY 
 

Policy Document 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Fraud is one of the fastest growing areas of crime in modern society and residents of 
South Lakeland are entitled to expect that their public funds are secure and handled 
honestly and conduct its affairs with integrity and honesty. South Lakeland District 
Council has a good record in preventing and identifying fraud but cannot afford to be 
complacent.  Fraud diverts money away from front line public services and 
prevention and detection of fraud is the responsibility of all staff. South Lakeland 
District Council has a duty to ensure that it safeguards the public money that it is 
responsible for. In carrying out its functions and responsibilities, the Council wishes 
to promote a culture of openness and fairness and expects all those who work and 
with the Council to adopt the highest standards of propriety and accountability. 

1.2 The Council is committed to eliminating all forms of bribery, fraud and corruption by 
having adequate prevention measures in place.  All suspicions of bribery, fraud or 
corrupt practise will be investigated and there will be no distinction made in 
investigation and action between those that generate financial benefits and those that 
do not.  Any investigation will not compromise the Council’s commitment to Equal 
Opportunities or the requirements of the Human Rights Act.  The Council advocates 
strict adherence to its anti-fraud framework.  The Council will not tolerate bribery, 
fraud or corruption by its employees, councillors, suppliers, contractors or partners. 
This Policy is intended to provide a clear statement of intent and responsibilities for: 

(a) Preventing bribery, fraud and corruption and 

(b) The investigation, reporting and handling of alleged irregularities 

This Policy outlines the Council’s commitment to eliminating fraud and corruption, 
whilst creating an anti-fraud culture and maintaining high ethical standards so as to 
protect public money. 

1.3 The Policy is based on a series of comprehensive and inter-related procedures, 
designed to prevent, detect and deter fraud and to take effective action against any 
attempted or actual fraudulent act affecting the Council.  These procedures will keep 
pace with any future developments in both preventative and detection techniques 
regarding fraudulent or corrupt activity that may affect the Council’s operations.  The 
Policy also satisfies the legislative requirements of having effective arrangements for 
tackling fraud and conforms to professional guidance laid down in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 

Page 93



 2 

2. OVERVIEW 

The Council is required to maintain an effective internal audit of its activities, with a key 
role to monitor the effectiveness of internal controls operating within the Council.  The 
Internal Audit function is currently provided by TIAA Ltd Cumbria Internal Audit Shared 
Service.   

For ease of understanding this policy is separated into four areas as below 

 Corporate Framework and Culture 

 Prevention and Responsibilities 

 Reporting, Detection and Investigation 

Awareness and Deterrence 

Fraud is defined in the Fraud Act 2006 as:-   

 “the intentional distortion of financial statements or other records by persons 
internal or external to the organisation which is carried out to mislead or 
misrepresent” 

The Fraud Act also sets out a general offence of fraud as follows: 

 “A dishonest act where a perpetrator intends to make a gain for themselves or 
cause loss to another” 

The offence of fraud is defined in three classes. 

 False representation 

 Failing to disclose information 

 Abuse of position 

Corruption is described as “the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement 
or reward which may influence the action of any person”. 

Under the 2010 Bribery Act, a bribe is  

 “An inducement or a reward offered, promised or provided to gain personal, 
commercial, regulatory or contractual advantage” 

There are four criminal offences created by the Bribery Act 2010: 

 Bribery of another person (section 1) to induce or reward them to perform a 
function improperly 

 Requesting or accepting a bribe (section 2) as a reward for performing a 
function improperly 

 Bribing a foreign official (section 6) to gain a business advantage 

 Failing to prevent bribery (section 7) 

Bribery may not always be monetary and may include gifts or hospitality.  The last 
offence is a corporate offence which places responsibility on the Council to put in 
place adequate procedures to prevent bribery.  

Anyone found guilty of an offence under sections 1, 2, or 6 is liable: 

 On conviction in a magistrates court, to imprisonment for a maximum term of 
12 months or to a fine not exceeding £5000 or both 

 On conviction in a crown court, to imprisonment for a maximum term of ten 
years, or to an unlimited fine, or both.  

Page 94



 3 

Organisations found guilty of an offence under section 7 are liable to an unlimited 
fine.  

It is irrelevant whether the request is made directly or through a third party or whether 
the advantage is for the benefit of the person performing the function or for the 
benefit of another person. Employees should always be aware of the possibility they 
may be targeted for attempted bribery 

NOTE: Throughout this policy the term “Fraud” is used generically and 
includes bribery and corruption and this policy covers all of the above.  

In addition to the above, the Council also expects the residents of South Lakeland to 
be honest in their dealings with the authority. 

3. CORPORATE FRAMEWORK AND CULTURE 

3.1 The prevention and detection of fraud and the protection of public money are 
responsibilities of everyone, both internal and external to the organisation.  The 
Council expects that Members and officers at all levels will lead by example in 
ensuring adherence to legal requirement, contracts procedure rules, financial 
procedure rules, codes of conduct and best practice. They are positively encouraged 
to raise any concerns regarding fraud, immaterial of seniority or status in the 
knowledge that any such concerns wherever possible, will be treated in confidence.  

3.2 This policy should be read in conjunction with a range of interrelated policies which 
provide a corporate framework to counter fraudulent activity.  

 Codes of Conduct for Members and officers [Part 5 of the Constitution of the 
Council] 

 A Register of Interests 

 Registers of Gifts and Hospitality 

 Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Procedure Rules [Part 4 of the 
Constitution of the Council] 

 Accounting procedures and records including general procedures for receiving 
income 

 Sound internal control systems 

 Effective internal audit, currently provided by TIAA Ltd Cumbria Internal Audit 
Shared Service 

 Officer Employment Procedure Rules 

 Disciplinary Procedure 

 Criminal Acts Procedure 

 Fraud Investigation Procedures and Guidelines 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) Procedure 

 Training 

3.3 The Council believes that the maintenance of a culture of honesty and openness is a 
key element in tackling fraud. The Codes of Conduct for Members and Staff are 
based on the Nolan Principles of Standards in Public Life, these being 

 Selflessness 

 Integrity 

 Objectivity 

Page 95



 4 

 Accountability 

 Openness 

 Honesty 

 Leadership 

            The overall culture supports intolerance stance towards fraud, bribery and corruption. 
Failure to uphold these Codes will be considered as detrimental to the aims of the 
Council and will lead to the appropriate action being taken against those concerned. 

4. PREVENTION AND RESPONSIBILITES 

The Council recognises that incidences of fraud and corruption are costly, both in 
terms of reputational risk and financial losses. The prevention of fraud is therefore a 
key objective of the authority and respective roles and responsibilities are outlined 
below. 

4.1 Council Employees 

4.1.1 A key preventative measure in dealing with fraud is to take effective steps at the 
recruitment stage. These will be to establish, as far as possible, the previous record 
of potential staff, in terms of their honesty and integrity. In this regard, temporary, 
casual and agency staff should be treated in the same manner as permanent 
officers. 

4.1.2 Staff recruitment will be undertaken in accordance with the Council's policies for 
Recruitment and Selection. Whenever possible, written references should be 
obtained regarding the known honesty and integrity of potential members of staff, 
before formal employment offers are made. 

4.1.3 For all appointments to posts where the employee will:- 

 have access to corporate computer systems or 

 be required to order goods or authorise invoices or 

 be required to handle cash or cheques or 

 negotiate contracts for the supply of goods or services 

 or for any other post which the responsible Director considers appropriate, the 
Council will seek a declaration from applicants that they have not been involved in 
false claims for Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax Discounts.  The declaration will 
be sought in respect of successful applications and with their agreement.  This 
process will be made clear in recruitment packs.  Disclosure and Barring Service 
(DBS) checks are undertaken for employees deemed to be working in appropriate 
roles.  

4.1.4 All staff must abide by the Council's Code of Conduct for Officers, which sets out 
requirements on personal conduct. All professional staff are expected to follow the 
codes of conduct laid down by their respective professional institute or trades body.  

4.1.5 The Council recognises that staff are often the first line of defence in preventing 
fraud. The Financial Procedure Rules place responsibility for fraud prevention on all 
employees and all employees of the Council have a duty to assist with an 
investigation. They are expected to conduct themselves in ways which are beyond 
reproach, above suspicion and fully accountable.  Employees are expected to be 
aware of the possibility that fraud, corruption and theft may exist in the workplace and 
be able to share their concerns with appropriate officers. 

4.1.6 The Council has in place disciplinary procedures for all employees and these will be 
used to facilitate a thorough investigation of any allegations of improper behaviour by 
employees. Those found to have committed any acts of misconduct will face 

Page 96



 5 

disciplinary action. Where criminal activity is suspected or found, the matter will be 
referred to the police for investigation and possible prosecution, in accordance with 
the Criminal Acts Procedure. In addition, the Council will pursue recovery for any 
financial loss. 

4.1.7 Under the Council's Constitution, staff must be aware of the disclosure of financial 
interests in contracts relating to the Council, or the non-acceptance of any fees, gifts, 
hospitality or any other rewards, other than their proper remuneration. These 
requirements are set out in Part 5 of the Constitution of the Council. 

4.1.8 The Council is required to comply with legislation relating to money laundering and 
there is a separate Anti-Money Laundering policy.  There is a legal requirement for 
employees to report any financial transactions which could be indicative or criminal 
action to the Section 151 Officer, the Finance Lead Specialist Assistant Director 
Resources. 

4.2 Members 

4.2.1 As elected representatives, all Members of the Council have a duty to the residents 
of South Lakeland to protect the Council and public money from any acts of fraud.  
This is done through this policy and through the regulations below.  

4.2.2 Members are required to operate within: 

 Member Code of Conduct  

 Sections 94-96 of the Local Government Act 1972 

 Sections 27-34 of the Localism Act  2011 

 Part 5 of the Constitution of the Council 

4.2.3 These matters and other guidance are specifically brought to the attention of new 
Members at induction courses. They include rules on the declaration of disclosable 
financial and other registerable interests. 

4.2.4 Members will face appropriate action under this policy if they are found to have been 
involved in theft, fraud or corruption against the Authority. Action will be taken in 
addition to, or instead of criminal proceedings, depending on the circumstances of 
each individual case but in a consistent manner. 

4.2.5 After approving an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, Members will be expected to 
play an important role through leading by example and being seen to support it. 

4.2.6 The Council has in place an Overview and Scrutiny process. Its remit includes the 
review of decisions and actions undertaken by the Council. Any matter arising from 
this process, in which fraud is suspected, can be referred to the Council’s internal 
auditors for independent investigation. 

4.2.7 The Council has a Standards Committee, which sets and monitors standards of 
conduct to and examines issues of potential misconduct by Members. 

 4.3 Internal Control Systems 

4.3.1 The Council has Financial and Contract Procedure Rules, Accounting Procedures 
and various rules and codes of conduct in place. Staff are required to comply with 
this best practice when dealing with the Council's affairs. 

4.3.2 The Finance Lead SpecialistAssistant Director (Resources) has a statutory 
responsibility under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, to ensure proper 
arrangements are made for the Council's financial affairs.  “Proper administration” 
encompasses all aspects of local authority financial management. 

Page 97



 6 

4.3.3  In addition, under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 20151, the Council 
is required to maintain an adequate and effective internal audit of its financial records 
and systems of internal control. 

4.3.4 The Council's aim is to have sound financial systems and procedures, which 
incorporate efficient and effective internal controls.  Effective role separation will 
guarantee decisions made are seen to be based upon impartial advice and ensure 
that no single individual has complete authority over one transaction. Directors and 
Operational Leads/Lead Specialists Assistant Directors are responsible for 
maintaining effective internal controls including the prevention and detection of fraud 
and other illegal acts. The Council’s internal auditors will monitor and report upon 
these controls. 

4.4 Combining with Others to Prevent and Fight Fraud 

4.4.1 The Council acknowledges that it cannot afford to work in isolation and must liaise 
with other organisations. There are a variety of arrangements in place and these will 
continue to be developed, which facilitate the regular exchange of information 
between the Council and other local authorities and agencies, for the purpose of 
preventing and detecting fraud. These involve national, regional and local networks 
of investigators such as internal auditors, fraud investigators etc.  All liaisons are 
subject to observance of Data Protection legislation and due regard to the proper 
handling of confidential information.  

4.4.2 The Council operates to the standards previously set out in the Verification 
Framework (VF) in line with central government initiatives to reduce fraud and error 
in Housing and Council Tax Benefit (Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme.  from 
April 2013). 

4.4.3 South Lakeland District Council is a member of the National Anti-Fraud Network 
(NAFN) which is a not-for-profit organisation which supports its members in 
protecting the public interest. Key benefits include the gathering of information in full 
compliance with the law from a wide range of information providers in response to 
allegations of fraud and on-going investigations and acting as a hub for the collection, 
collation and circulation of intelligence alerts.  

4.4.4 The Council also undertakes specific initiatives to detect fraud. Examples include  

 Data matching both internally and with the Cabinet Office. This is recognised 
as an important tool in the prevention and detection of fraud, and is used by all other 
local authorities. The Audit Commission drew up a Code of Data Matching Practice 
for its National Fraud Initiative (NFI), which is recognised by the Information 
Commissioner as complying with Data Protection legislation. The Council contributes 
to this bi-annual National Fraud Initiative led by the Cabinet Office and involves 
comparing computer records held by one body against other computer records held 
by the same or another body to see how far they match.  This is usually personal 
information and computerised data matching allows potentially fraudulent claims and 
payments to be identified.   No assumption can be made as to whether there is fraud, 
error or other explanation until an investigation is carried out.  

 Data matching via the Housing Benefit Matching Service (HBMS) which 
identifies irregularities in claims for Housing Benefit.  

4.4.5 The Council has also introduced a Benefit Fraud Hotline, to allow members of the 
public to report individuals who are suspected of abusing the benefits system. 

5. REPORTING, DETECTION AND INVESTIGATION 

5.1 It is the responsibility of Directors and Operational Leads/Lead Specialists Assistant 
Directors to maintain good control systems and ensure that all staff complies with 
these systems. 

Page 98



 7 

5.2 The Council’s internal auditor, currently TIAA Ltd Cumbria Internal Audit Shared 
Service, has a planned programme to undertake a cyclical programme of audits to 
test for fraud and corruption, based on a risk assessment model. This includes liaison 
with external audit when considering the programme of audits. 

5.3 Despite the best efforts of managers and auditors, many frauds are discovered by 
the vigilance of staff or a member of the public and there are procedures in place to 
enable such information to be properly dealt with.    In addition, members of the 
public may wish to raise concerns relating to areas of local authority responsibility.  In 
such cases there is a requirement within the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules for 
staff to: 

 Report actual or suspected instances of fraud to the Director concerned who shall 
immediately notify the Finance Lead Specialist Assistant Director (Resources) 
who shall take such steps as he considers necessary by way of investigation 

 The Finance Lead Specialist Assistant Director (Resources) will consult with the 
Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) who will 
decide whether to involve the Police in matters of serious fraud and inform the 
Leader of the Council or appropriate Chairman accordingly. 

5.4 There is a dedicated Verification team responsible for conducting evidence checks in 
line with Verification Framework procedures, the Housing Benefit (General) 
Regulations and the Council Tax Benefit (General) Regulations.  
Evidence checks will include: 

 Identity 

 Residency and rent 

 Household composition 

 Earnings, employed and self- employed 

 Benefits 

 Income 

 Capital 

The Team will also report any allegations of fraud to the Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer 
who will carry out initial enquiries and assess the claim for suitability for referral to the 
Department for Works and Pensions investigations team.  Risk assessment will be 
undertaken to direct cases to the resources deemed to be the highest risk in terms of 
loss to the public purse. Separate guidelines and Codes of Practice for the 
prosecution of offenders are in place, including a Code of Conduct for Fraud 
investigators and practices for the treatment and questioning of persons and tape 
recording of interviews. 

5.5 Money laundering is the practice whereby criminals attempt to “clean” the proceeds 
of criminal activity by passing it through a legitimate institution.  All staff who receive 
cash as part of their duties will be vigilant for any unusual transactions that might 
indicate that an attempt is being made to launder money.  As an additional safeguard 
receipt of notes, coins or travellers’ cheques will not be accepted over £5,000 for any 
one transaction. Note: A separate Anti-Money Laundering policy refers. 

5.6 Reporting suspected irregularities is essential to the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy 
and ensures: 

 consistent treatment of information regarding fraud and corruption 

 proper investigation by an experienced team 

 the optimum protection of the Council's interests 

Page 99



 8 

Although this document specifically refers to bribery, fraud and corruption, it equally 
applies to any forms of malpractice that can reduce public confidence in the Council 
and its services and may also include acts committed outside of official duties but 
which impact upon the Council’s trust in the individual concerned.  As part of the 
culture, the Council will provide clear routes by which concerns can be raised by both 
Members and officers and those outside who are providing using or paying for public 
services. Staff will report any irregularities to the Operational Leads/Lead Specialists 
Assistant Director concerned who will refer all cases to the Head of Internal Audit and 
to his/her director.  The Operational Leads/Lead Specialists Assistant Director and 
the Finance Lead Specialist Assistant Director (Resources) will determine if an 
investigation is necessary.  The Finance Lead Specialist Assistant Director 
(Resources) will consult with the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) who will decide whether to involve the Police in cases where an 
offence is suspected and inform the Leader of the Council or the appropriate 
Chairman accordingly.  Every concern raised will be centrally and formally recorded 
through the Head of Internal Audit.  Details of all concerns will be periodically 
reported to the Audit Committee. 

5.7 Depending on the nature and anticipated extent of the allegations, the Finance Lead 
Specialist Assistant Director (Resources) may involve the Council’s Internal Auditor 
Cumbria Internal Audit Shared Service whoto work closely with: 

 Departmental Management 

 Human Resources Group 

 Legal Services 

 Other agencies, such as the Police 

This is to ensure that all allegations and evidence are properly investigated and 
reported upon, and that where appropriate, recoveries are made for the Council. 

5.8 The Council's Whistleblowing Policy provides a clear path for individuals to raise 
concerns of malpractice in any aspect of the Council’s work, without the fear of 
recrimination or victimisation. The Council will take appropriate action to protect any 
individual who has raised a concern in good faith. The Policy deals with the reporting 
of fraud or alleged fraud through formal channels. The Policy also covers making 
disclosures to external bodies if there is an unsatisfactory outcome to a disclosure 
made internally. 

The Fraud Hotline phone facility (01539 793249) is available to staff, suppliers and 
members of the public for raising whistleblowing concerns.  All calls will be 
specifically logged, treated confidentially and investigated through the most 
appropriate means. 

5.9 For employees that are suspected of fraud a full investigation under the Council’s 
Disciplinary Policy and Procedure will take place. If the individual is found guilty of 
any wrongdoing this could ultimately lead to action taking place including dismissal.  
It should be noted that an allegation does not mean that person or company is guilty 
of any wrong-doing and so they will not be treated as such until the case is proven.  

5.10 Where financial misconduct is discovered relating to employees or Members, or grant 
aided voluntary organisations, the matter may be referred to the Police in accordance 
with the Criminal Acts Procedure. Such decisions are a matter for the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) Assistant Director 
(Resources) in consultation with the Finance Lead Specialist and the Director 
concerned. Referral to the Police will not necessarily prohibit action under the 
disciplinary procedure. 

5.11 The Council's External Auditor, Grant Thornton, appointed by the Audit Commission, 
also has powers to independently investigate bribery fraud and corruption. 

Page 100



 9 

6. TRAINING AND AWARENESS 

6.1 The Council recognises that the success and credibility of this policy will depend 
largely on how effectively it is communicated throughout the organisation and 
beyond. To this end, appropriate action will be taken to raise awareness levels and 
details of the Policy will be provided to all Members and all staff and be included on 
induction programmes. The Policy will also be shown on the Council’s website and 
be available on the Intranet. 

  

6.2 The Council supports the concept of induction training, particularly for officers 
involved in internal control systems, to ensure that their responsibilities and duties in 
this respect are regularly highlighted and reinforced. 

6.3 The officers involved in the review of internal control systems and investigative work 
should be properly and regularly trained. Those involved with fraud investigation will 
be required to hold a relevant Counter Fraud qualification and during the course of 
the investigation, the following actions will be taken 

 A fraud log will be maintained, detailing every action taken during the 
investigation, including dates and times that each action undertaken was 
carried out 

 As much documentary evidence as possible will be obtained before any 
interviews are conducted 

 All evidence will be obtained lawfully, properly recorded and retained securely 
in accordance with the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (PACE) and 
the Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996 

 Fact finding interviews will be conducted during the course of the 
investigation. If at any time during these interviews it becomes clear that a 
criminal offence may have occurred, the fact finding interview will be ended 
and the interviewee will be formally cautioned.  The interviewee will then be 
formally interviewed under caution in accordance with PACE.  

6.4 It is the responsibility of Operational Leads/Lead Specialists Assistant Directors to 
communicate the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy to their staff and to promote a 
greater awareness of fraud within their services. 

7. DETERRENCE 

7.1 There are a number of ways in which we seek to deter a bribe or potential fraudsters 
from committing or attempting fraudulent or corrupt acts, whether they are inside or 
outside of the Council, and these include: 

 publicising the fact the Council is firmly set against fraud and corruption and 
states this at every appropriate opportunity, e.g. statements in contracts, on claim 
forms, on the Council’s website and in publicity literature both internal and 
external.  

 acting robustly and decisively when fraud and corruption is suspected and 
proven, to deter others from committing offences against the Authority, e.g. the 
termination of contracts, the dismissal and/or prosecution of offenders 

 taking action to effect the maximum recoveries for the Council, e.g. through 
agreement, court action, penalties, insurance, superannuation etc 

 having sound internal control systems, that still allow for innovation and 
calculated risk, but at the same time minimising the opportunity for fraud and 
corruption. 

8. REVIEW 

Page 101



 10 

8.1 This policy will be reviewed at appropriate times in response to procedural and legal 
changes. 

9 CONCLUSIONS 

9.1 The Council has in place a robust network of systems and procedures to assist it in 
the fight against fraud and corruption and pledges to take all action necessary to 
identify such cases.   It is determined that these arrangements will keep pace with 
any future developments in both preventative and detection techniques regarding 
fraudulent or corrupt activity that may affect its operation or related responsibilities. 
To this end, the Council maintains a continuous overview of such arrangements. 

9.2 The Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption Policy provides a comprehensive framework 
for preventing and tackling fraudulent and corrupt acts against the authority. The 
approval of the Policy by the full Council demonstrates a commitment to protecting 
public funds and minimising losses to fraud and corruption. Having made this 
commitment, it is imperative that Directors and Assistant Directors put in place 
arrangements for disseminating the Policy and promoting fraud awareness, 
throughout their services. 

 

December 2015 

Reviewed: September 2017 

September 2019 

Page 102



South Lakeland District Council 
Anti-Money Laundering Policy 

Contents 

1 Introduction ................................................................................................................ 2 

2 Scope of the policy ..................................................................................................... 2 

3 What is money laundering? ........................................................................................ 2 

4 Legislation .................................................................................................................. 3 

5 Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on the 
Payer) Regulations 2017 (MLR 2017) OVERVIEW OF OBLIGATIONS ON THE 
COUNCIL .................................................................................................................. 3 

6 Nominated officer ....................................................................................................... 3 

7 Possible signs of money laundering ........................................................................... 4 

8 High value cash transactions ...................................................................................... 4 

9 Client identification procedures ................................................................................... 4 

10 Suspicious activity reporting ....................................................................................... 5 

11 Record keeping procedures ........................................................................................ 6 

12 Conclusion ................................................................................................................. 6 

13 Review ....................................................................................................................... 6 

Appendix 2

Page 103



2 
 
 

1 Introduction 

1.1 The Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on 
the Payer) Regulations 2017 (MLR 2017) came into force in June 2017 and, for any 
offences committed after 26 June 2017, replace the Money Laundering Regulations 
2007. The 2017 Regulations impact on certain areas of local authority business and 
require local authorities to establish internal procedures to prevent the use of their 
services for money laundering. 

2 Scope of the policy 

2.1 This Policy applies to all officers (including agency staff) and elected members of the 
Council and aims to maintain the high standards of conduct which currently exist 
within the Council by preventing criminal activity through money laundering. The 
Policy sets out the procedures which must be followed to enable the Council to 
comply with its legal obligations. Within this policy the term employees refers to all 
employees and elected members. 

2.2 Failure by an employee to comply with the procedures set out in this Policy may lead 
to disciplinary action being taken against them. Any disciplinary action will be dealt 
with in accordance with the Council’s Disciplinary Policy. 

2.3 Directors and managers must ensure that all employees are aware of this policy. 

3 What is money laundering? 

3.1 Money laundering is the process by which criminally obtained money or other assets 
are exchanged for clean money or assets with no obvious link to their criminal 
origins. It also covers money, however come by, which is used to fund terrorism. 

3.2 Money laundering can take many forms such as: 

• Concealing, disguising, converting, transferring criminal property or removing it 
from the UK. 

• Entering into or becoming concerned in an arrangement which you know or 
suspect facilitates the acquisition, retention, use or control of criminal property by 
or on behalf of another person. 

• Acquiring, using or possessing criminal property. 
• Investing the proceeds of crime into other financial products or the acquisition of 

property/assets. 
• Tipping off a person(s) who is or is suspected of being involved in money 

laundering in such a way as to reduce the likelihood of or prejudice an 
investigation. 

Although the term ‘money laundering’ is generally used to describe activities of 
organised crime, for most people it will involve a suspicion that someone they know, 
or know of, is benefiting financially from dishonest activities. 

3.3 Potentially any member of staff could be caught by the money laundering provisions 
if they suspect money laundering and either become involved in it in some way 
and/or do nothing about it. Failure to report money laundering is an offence. 

Page 104



3 

3.4 Whilst the risk to the Council of contravening the legislation is low, it is extremely 
important that all employees are familiar with their legal responsibilities: serious 
criminal sanctions may be imposed for breaches of the legislation. 

4 Legislation 

4.1 The main UK legislation covering anti-money laundering and terrorist financing is: 

• Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (as amended by the Serious Organised Crime and
Police Act 2005)

• Terrorism Act 2000 (as amended by the Anti-Terrorism, Crime and Security Act
2001)

5 Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer 
of Funds (Information on the Payer) Regulations 2017 
(MLR 2017) OVERVIEW OF OBLIGATIONS ON THE 
COUNCIL 

5.1 The main requirements of the legislation are: 

• To appoint a money laundering reporting officer
• Maintain client identification procedures in certain circumstances
• Implement a procedure to enable the reporting of suspicions of money laundering
• Maintain record keeping procedures

5.2 Providing the Council does not undertake activities regulated under the Financial 
Services and Markets Act 2000, the offences of failure to disclose and tipping off do 
not apply. However, the Council and its employees and Members remain subject to 
the remainder of the offences and the full provisions of the Terrorism Act 2000. 

5.3 The Terrorism Act 2000 made it an offence of money laundering to become 
concerned in an arrangement relating to the retention or control of property likely to 
be used for the purposes of terrorism, or resulting from acts of terrorism. 

5.4 Potentially very heavy penalties (unlimited fines and imprisonment of up to fourteen 
years) can be handed down to those who are convicted of one of the offences above. 

6 Nominated officer 

6.1 The regulations require the Council to appoint a Nominated Officer, sometimes 
known as Money Laundering Reporting Officer (“MLRO”) who is responsible for: 

• Receiving internal suspicious transaction reports (also known as disclosures)
from within the Council.

• Deciding whether these should be reported to the National Crime Agency.
• If appropriate, making such reports to the National Crime Agency.

6.2 The Officer nominated as MLRO to receive disclosures about money laundering 
activity within the Council is the Section 151 Officer, the Finance Lead 
Specialist. She can be contacted at h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 01539 

Page 105

mailto:s.mcgregor@southlakeland.gov.uk


4 

793147. In the absence of the MLRO, the Finance Specialist and Deputy Section 
151 officer is the authorised deputy (contact details: 
Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk or 01539 793152). 

7 Possible signs of money laundering 

7.1 It is not possible to give a definitive list of ways in which to spot money laundering but 
facts which tend to suggest that something “odd” is happening may be sufficient for a 
reasonable suspicion of money laundering to arise. 

7.2 The following are the types of risk factors which may, either alone or cumulatively 
with other factors, suggest the possibility of money laundering activity: 

• A new customer with no previous history with the Council;
• A secretive customer: for example one who refuses to provide requested

information without a reasonable explanation;
• Concerns about the honesty, integrity or identity of a customer;
• Illogical third party transactions: for example unnecessary routing or receipt of

funds from third parties or through third party accounts;
• Involvement of an unconnected third party without logical reason or explanation;
• Payment of a substantial sum in cash;
• Overpayments by a customer;
• Absence of an obvious legitimate source of the funds;
• Movement of funds to and from overseas, particularly to and from a higher risk

country;
• Where, without reasonable explanation, the size, nature and frequency of

transactions or instructions is out of line with normal expectations;
• Cancellation or reversal of an earlier transaction.

8 High value cash transactions 

8.1 If the customer wishes to make cash payment, or a series of cash payments of 
£1,000 or more must consult with the Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer (01539 793249) 
and ask for, and inspect, identification before accepting payment It is best practice to 
insist on payment by cheque or electronically from a UK clearing bank. 

9 Client identification procedures 

9.1 The Council will put in place procedures to identify customers when Council land or 
property is being sold. The procedures will require the Council to: 

• Identify customers and verify their identity on the basis of documents from a
reliable and approved source.

• Identify where applicable the beneficial owner (see below) and take adequate
measures on a risk sensitive basis to verify their identity.

• Maintain records of all checks.

“Beneficial owners” are the individuals who ultimately own or control have a legal 
interest in the asset or the person on whose behalf a transaction or activity is being 
conducted. 

Page 106

mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk


5 

9.2 If satisfactory evidence of a customer’s identity at the outset cannot be obtained, then 
the business transaction can NOT proceed any further. 

9.3 All personal data collected must be kept in accordance with the Data Protection Act. 

10 Suspicious activity reporting 

10.1 The MLRO is required to make reports to the National Crime Agency where s/he 
knows or suspects or has reasonable grounds for knowing or suspecting that a 
person is engaged in money laundering or terrorist financing. 

10.2 Any staff in the Council who know, suspect or have reasonable grounds for knowing 
or suspecting that a person is engaged in money laundering or terrorist financing 
must report such matters to the nominated officer (MLRO) as soon as possible. On 
receipt of a report, it is for the nominated officer to decide whether a suspicious 
activity report needs to be made to the National Crime Agency. 

10.3 Suspicion has its ordinary meaning, and a report should be made if a member of 
staff/the MLRO thinks that there is a possibility, which is more than fanciful, that a 
person is or has been engaged in money laundering or terrorist financing. 

10.4 The report to the MLRO should be within “hours” of the information/suspicion coming 
to your attention, not weeks or months later. Should you not do so then you may be 
liable to prosecution. 

10.5 The report should give as much information as possible: e.g. 

• Full details of the people involved (including yourself) i.e. name, date of birth,
address, company names, direct partnerships, phone numbers etc.

• Full details of the type of transaction and the nature of their/your involvement.
• The date of the money-laundering activity, including whether the transactions

have happened, are ongoing or are imminent.
• Where they took/taking place.
• How they were/are being undertaken.
• The (likely) amount of money/assets involved.
• Why you are suspicious.

10.6 Once you have reported the matter to the MLRO you must follow any directions 
he/she may give you. You must not make any further enquiries into the matter 
yourself. 

10.7 At no time and under no circumstances should you voice any suspicion to the 
person(s) whom you suspect of money laundering otherwise you may commit a 
criminal offence of “tipping off” (section 333 of the 2002 Act), if knowing a disclosure 
has been made to the MLRO, you make a disclosure to someone else which is likely 
to prejudice any investigation which may be conducted. The offence of “tipping off” 
carries a possible sentence of imprisonment (maximum five years), a fine, or both. 
Do not, therefore, make any reference on a client file to a report having been made to 
the MLRO – should the client exercise their right to see the file, then such a note will 
obviously tip them off to the report having been made and may render you liable to 
prosecution. The MLRO will keep the appropriate records in a confidential manner. 

Page 107



6 

11 Record keeping procedures 

11.1 Each unit of the Council conducting relevant business must maintain records of: 

• Client identification evidence obtained; and
• Details of all relevant business transactions carried out for clients for at least six

years. This is so that they may be used as evidence in any subsequent
investigation by the authorities into money laundering and also to demonstrate
the Council’s compliance with the regulations.

11.2 The precise nature of the records is not prescribed by law. However, they must be 
capable of providing an audit trail during any subsequent investigation, for example 
distinguishing the client and the relevant transaction and recording in what form any 
funds were received or paid. In practice, the business units of the Council will be 
routinely making records of work carried out for clients in the course of normal 
business and these should suffice in this regard. 

12 Conclusion 

12.1 The Money Laundering legislation is complex. This policy has been written as a 
safeguard and to enable the Council to meet its legal obligations. 

13 Review 

13.1 This policy will be reviewed bi-annually. 

Revised September 2019 

Page 108


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 1, 2019/20
	Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 1, 2019/20  - Appendix 1
	PRSNT don't use

	Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 1, 2019/20  - Appendix 2
	Corporate Financial Monitoring Quarter 1, 2019/20  - Appendix 3

	7 Member Support Steering Group - Annual Update
	Member Support Steering Group - Annual Update - Appendix A
	Member Support Steering Group - Annual Update - Appendix B
	Member Support Steering Group - Annual Update - Appendix C
	Member Support Steering Group - Annual Update - Appendix D
	Member Support Steering Group - Annual Update - Appendix E

	8 Review of Anti-Fraud Policies
	Review of Anti Fraud Policies - Appendix 1
	Review of Anti Fraud Policies - Appendix 2
	South Lakeland District Council Anti-Money Laundering Policy
	1 Introduction
	2 Scope of the policy
	3 What is money laundering?
	4 Legislation
	5 Money Laundering, Terrorist Financing and Transfer of Funds (Information on the Payer) Regulations 2017 (MLR 2017) OVERVIEW OF OBLIGATIONS ON THE COUNCIL
	6 Nominated officer
	7 Possible signs of money laundering
	8 High value cash transactions
	9 Client identification procedures
	10 Suspicious activity reporting
	11 Record keeping procedures
	12 Conclusion
	13 Review






